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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

For the financial year ended 31 March 2010, the Group recorded
a profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$191 million, compared to the loss of
approximately HK$111.6 million for 2009. As at 31 March
2010, the equity attributable to owners of the Company and its
subsidiaries was approximately HK$772.7 million, representing an
increase of 80.6% from approximately HK$427.7 million for the
previous year.

During the year under review, the global economy has made a
remarkable recovery with the swift intervention and co-operation
from governments globally. The stock market and property market
rallied substantially during the year driven by the liquidity caused by
economic stimulation policiesimplemented by various governments
and low interest rates. Benefited from the strong recovery of the
stock market, the Group’s securities business contributed a profit
of approximately HK$35.8 million for 2010 compared to a loss of
approximately HK$28.1 million for 2009.

During the year, the Group successfully raised long-term equity
funding of approximately HK$18.4 million via the open offer
and increased its property portfolios by acquiring high quality
properties in the property market as well as acquiring the entire
interest of Expats Residences Pte Ltd and shareholder loans for
an aggregate consideration of HK$40.7 million satisfied by the
issuance of approximately 301.5 million shares of the Company
to strengthen its capital base and to enhance its financial position
and net assets base.

The Company expects to continue facing significant challenges in
the near future in view of risks which remain in the year ahead, as
the recovery has been uneven globally. The impact of the potential
withdrawal of government stimuli will also add uncertainties to
the environment that we operate. The Group will continue to
adopt a risk-conscious approach towards managing its property
and securities portfolios and continue to implement cost control
measures and margin management.

I would like to express my gratitude to our shareholders, my fellow
board members, customers and employees for their continuous
support for the Group. | hope the Group will continue to have your
strong support in the future.

CHAN HENG FAI
Managing Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 July 2010
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$77.0 million
for the year ended 31 March 2010, representing a decrease of
approximately 17.5% as compared to the year ended 31 March
2009. The decrease in turnover was mainly due to the decrease
of the turnover of the hotels and hospitality division during the
year and the closure of credit card division in last year. The profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2010 was approximately HK$191.0 million as compared to
the loss of approximately HK$111.6 million in 2009.

The basic earnings per share for the year was HK8.62 cents when
compared to the loss per share of HK6.12 cents in last year.

a) Hotels and Hospitality Division

The hotels and hospitality division operates through a number
of subsidiaries including:

e  Sapporo Holdings Co. Ltd. (“Sapporo”)

Sapporo, a Japan company 100% acquired in July 2006,
was established on 8 March 2004 for the purpose of
operating investments, inns and hotels. Its principal
asset is a hotel known as Hamilton Hotel located in
Chuo Ward, Sapporo City, Japan.

Hamilton Hotel is an eight-storey building erected
over a one-level basement. It comprises a total of 103
guestrooms of various types including a Japanese room,
a meeting room, a haircut salon, a Japanese restaurant
and esthetic saloon. The total gross floor area of
Hamilton Hotel is approximately 3,209 square meters.

° Hotel Plaza Miyazaki Co. Ltd. (“Hotel Plaza Miyazaki”)

Hotel Plaza Miyazaki is located at Southern part of Japan
Kyushu Island, Miyazaki City is the second largest city on
Kyushu Island. It is one of the well-known hotels situated
at the center of city, 10 minutes from Miyazaki Station
along Oyodogawa riverside. The hotel has 164 rooms
provides full service including 15 different size banquet
rooms, 4 meeting rooms, a river view sky restaurant/
lounge, 2 Japanese restaurants, 1 karaoke room, 1 bar
and 1 lobby lounge. In addition, the hotel has a natural
hot spring spa facility with in and out door hot spring
bath, sauna and massage service open to staying guest
and day use visitor.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

b)

c)

d)

e Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuya (" Aizuya”)

Aizuya is a traditional Japanese hot spring inn located
at Nasu, Tochigi prefecture, a famous mountain resort
area which is approximately 2 hours drive from Tokyo
downtown. It has a total of 22 rooms including 2 rooms
with hot spring open bath. It can accommodate over
60 guests at one time. Facilities include 2 large hot
spring baths, 2 private hot spring open baths for staying
guests exclusive use at charter base, 2 massage rooms
serve female clients only, 1 restaurant serving dinner &
breakfast and 1 souvenir shop including Aizuya private
label items such as Sake, Soba (Japanese noodles), etc.

The turnover of the hotels and hospitality division in 2010
was approximately HK$45.0 million, representing a decrease
of 31.0% from last year. The segment loss was approximately
HK$4.2 million, up 30.9% from last year.

Financing and Credit Card Division

The Group closed its credit card division and focused on
corporate and consumer finance in last year. However,
as the corporate and consumer finance business in Hong
Kong have been facing keen competition, the Group has
reallocated its resources to property investment and securities
investments. As a result, the turnover of the financing and
credit card division in 2010 was approximately HK$1.2
million, representing a decrease of 85.9% from last year.
The segment loss was approximately HK$2.7 million, down
64.8% from last year.

Securities Trading

During the year, the stock market rallied substantially driven
by the liquidity caused by economic stimulation policies
implemented by various governments and low interest rates.
Benefited from the strong recovery of the stock market,
the Group’s securities business contributed a profit of
approximately HK$35.8 million for 2010 compared to a loss
of approximately HK$28.1 million for 2009.

Property Investments

For the same result as above, the property market rallied
substantially during the year. This division contributed
revenues of approximately HK$15.0 million and net profit of
approximately HK$204.3 million to the Group, including a
fair value gain of approximately HK$190.1 million compared
to fair value loss of approximately HK$12.3 million in 2009.

b)

c)

a)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

e) Other Investments

As at 31 March 2010, the Group held approximately 33% of
SingXpress Ltd (“SingXpress”), a Singapore listed associate
of the Group. During the year, the Group share of loss of
approximately HK$2.1 million from SingXpress.

As at 31 March 2010, the Group held approximately 30%
in RSI International Systems Inc. (“RSI”), a Canada listed
associate of the Group. During the year, the Group share a
profit of approximately HK$79,000 from RSI.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

During the period, 1,430,359 units of 2009 Warrants and
133,376,200 options were exercised and approximately HK$19.2
million was raised. At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had outstanding 172,000,000 unlisted warrants. Exercise in full of
such warrants would result in the issue of 172,000,000 additional
shares of HK$0.01 each. The open offer announced by the Group
on 9 April 2009 gained support from the Group’s controlling
shareholder, Mr. Chan Heng Fai, who agreed to underwrite the
whole open offer. The open offer was heavily oversubscribed and
about HK$18.4 million in equity was raised in May 2009.

As at 31 March 2010, the equity attributable to owners of the
Company was increased to approximately HK$772.7 million (31
March 2009: HK$427.7 million).

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had bank balance and cash
amounted to approximately HK$133.8 million (31 March 2009:
HK$56.8 million) mainly dominated in US dollars, Hong Kong
dollars, Singapore dollars and Japanese Yen. The Group had
borrowings of approximately HK$183.8 million mainly dominated
in Hong Kong dollars, Singapore dollars and Japanese Yen (31
March 2009: HK$74.1 million). As at 31 March 2010, the Group's
current ratio was 1.4 (31 March 2009: 3.0) and had a gearing
ratio of 4% (31 March 2009: 3%), defined as the ratio of total
borrowing less cash balances to total assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

(@) During the year, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreements to acquire two properties situated at Wyndham
Place, Hong Kong for the consideration of HK$24 million and
approximately HK$32.0 million respectively.

(b) During the year, the Group entered into sale and purchase
agreements to acquire two properties situated in Singapore
for an aggregate consideration of $$2.65 million.

(c) During the year, the Group disposed its entire interests in
Novena Holdings Limited, a Singapore based listed company
known as a consumer lifestyle player in furniture and beauty
products.

(d) During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement for the purchase of the 100% equity interest in
Expats Residences Pte Ltd, a property investment company
incorporated in Singapore, and the shareholder loan at an
aggregate consideration of HK$40.7 million which was
satisfied by the issuance of approximately 301.5 million
shares of the Company.

(e) During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose a property situated in Canada for an
aggregate consideration of CAD3 million. The transaction
was completed in April 2010.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had made capital commitment
of HK$ nil (31 March 2009: HK$54.9 million) for acquisition of
investment properties in Singapore contracted for but not provided
in the financial statements. The Group did not make any capital
commitment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
authorized but not contracted for as at 31 March 2010.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Substantially all the revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, U.S. dollars, Canadian dollars,
Japanese Yen and Singapore dollars. Due to the currency peg of the
Hong Kong dollars to the U.S. dollars, the exchange rate between
these two currencies has remained stable and thus no hedging or
other alternatives have been implemented by the Group. Going
forward, the Group may formulate a foreign currency hedging
policy to provide a reasonable margin of safety in our exposure
in Japanese Yen and Singapore dollars transaction, assets and
liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's credit policy defines the credit extension criteria, the
credit approval and monitoring processes, and the loan provisioning
policy. The Group maintains tight control on loan assessments and
approvals and will continue to exercise a conservative and prudent
policy in granting loans in order to maintain a quality loan portfolio
and manage the credit risk exposure of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Remuneration packages are generally structured by reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors. Apart from
salary payments, there are other staff benefits including provident
fund, medical insurance and performance related bonus. At
the end of the reporting period, there were approximately 122
employees employed by the Group. Share options may also be
granted to eligible employees and persons of the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s facilities of
HK$175.6 million were mainly secured by the investment
properties, land and buildings and bank deposit of the Group with
an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$800.8 million.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT PROFILE

DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Heng Fai, aged 65, is the Managing Chairman of
the Company. He has been a director of the Company since
September 1992. Mr. Chan is responsible for the overall business
development of the Group. He has significant experience in
the finance and banking sectors and expertise in restructuring
companies. Mr. Chan is the Executive Chairman of SingXpress
Ltd, a company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan
was (i) the Executive Chairman of China Gas Holdings Limited
(www.chinagasholdings.com.hk), a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which under Mr. Chan’s
guidance and direction, was restructured from a formerly failing
fashion retail company to become one of a few large participants
in the investment, operation and management of city gas pipeline
infrastructure, distribution of natural gas and LPG to residential,
commercial and industrial users in China; (ii) a director of Global
Med Technologies, Inc (www.globalmedtech.com), a medical
company listed on NASDAQ which engaged in the design, develop,
market and support information management software products
for blood banks, hospitals, centralized transfusion centers and
other healthcare related facilities; (iii) a director of Skywest Ltd
(www.skywest.com.au), a Australia listed airline company; and (iv)
the chairman and director of American Pacific Bank (the “Bank"),
a commercial bank publicly listed on NASDAQ from 1988 to 2005.
The Bank was acquired as a bankruptcy bank in 1986 and under
Mr. Chan'’s leadership, it was rated as the No. 1 best performance
bank in U.S.A for asset quality and loan lost ratio was 0% for 5
years running before the Bank was acquired in 2005. Mr. Chan
had restructured over 35 companies in different industries and
countries in the past 40 years. He is the spouse of Ms. Chan Yoke
Keow.

Mr. Chan Tong Wan, Tony, aged 35, is the Managing Director
of the Company. Mr. Chan began his career by working in two
international companies as an investment banker specialising in
Asian equity financial products. Subsequently, Mr. Chan worked
for a finance and technology company in the United States as the
Chief Operating Officer with a focus on its investment banking
and merchant banking activities. Mr. Chan joined the Group as
a non-executive director in January 2000, was appointed as an
executive director in September 2002 and was appointed as
Managing Director in August 2003. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor
of Commerce degree with honours, with a Finance specialization,
from the University of British Columbia. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr.
Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow, aged 61, has been a director of the
Company since January 1992. She is responsible for the general
administration and financial planning of the Group. She has over
25 years’ experience in financial management and administration.
Ms. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. She
is the spouse of Mr. Chan Heng Fai.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Mr. Fong Kwok Jen, aged 61. Mr. Fong is a Director of Fong
Law Corporation, a legal practice. Mr. Fong graduated from the
University of Singapore with a LL.B. (Honours). In 1976/77 he was
awarded the Colombo Plan Award to attend the Government
Legal Officer's Course in the United Kingdom. In 1986, he
attended the NITA Advocacy Programme at Harvard Law School.
He was appointed to the Board in 1995. He served as Chairman
of the Disciplinary Committee of SGX-ST from 1995 to 2007 and
was member of the Securities Industry Council between 1992
and 2003. He was also a Council Member of the Law Society of
Singapore from 1990 to 1992. He is a director of several public
listed companies.

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter, aged 68, has over 32 years experience
in the fashion industry including distribution, sourcing, overseeing
manufacturing and exporting to international clients in France, the
United Kingdom, Germany and the United States. Mr. Wong was
appointed as an independent non-executive director in September
1998.

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo, aged 59, has over 20 years’ experience
in human resources, China trade and real estates industry. Mr. Da
Roza was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
the Company in July 2004.

Mr. Wong Tat Keung, aged 39, has more than 15 years of audit,
taxation, accounting and business advisory experience. Mr. Wong
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in December 2009. Mr. Wong is an independent non-
executive director of SingXpress Ltd. From 2006 to February 2010,
he was the proprietor of Aston Wong & Co., Certified Public
Accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Since January 2010, he
has been a director of his own corporate practice namely ASTON
WONG CPA LIMITED.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Tung Moe, aged 32, the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, is responsible for the overall management of the
Group'’s business. Previously, Mr. Chan was an Executive Director
of the Company and was in charge of the overall management of
Xpress Finance Limited. He also has experience in technical and
business development in the finance and technology industries. He
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration with honours,
a Master’s Degree in Electro-Mechanical Engineering with honours
and a Bachelor’s Degree in Applied Science with honours. Mr.
Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

EEREEAEBRBN
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann, aged 39, is an Executive of the
Group. Ms. Chan is involved with the securities operations. Ms.
Chan was an Executive Director of the Company and has previous
experience with one of the leading banks in Hong Kong where
she was involved in sales and marketing as well as relationship
management for the Regional Securities office. Ms. Chan is the
daughter of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

Mr. Wong Shui Yeung, aged 39, is the Chief Financial Officer
of the Group and responsible for the financial and management
reporting of the Group, including internal control and policy
review, taxation, audit, legal and regulatory affairs. Mr. Wong is
the Chief Financial Officer of SingXpress Ltd., the shares of which
are listed on the Singapore Exchange. He has over 15 years in public
accounting, taxation, and financial consultancy and management
in Hong Kong. He worked with an international accounting firm
prior to joining the Group in 2001. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Business Administration and is currently practicing as a certified
public accountant in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member
of the Hong Kong Securities Institute.

Mr. Yuen Ping Man, aged 46, is the joint Company Secretary
and the Chief Operating Officer of the Group and responsible
for the corporate secretarial function and business operations.
Previously, Mr. Yuen was the Chief Operating Officer of Xpress
Finance responsible for compliance, human resource, operations,
sales & marketing, customer service and general administration
of Xpress Finance. Mr. Yuen has over 15 years’ managerial
experience in corporate secretarial, business development, human
resources and general administration. Prior to joining Xpress
Finance in June 1997, Mr. Yuen worked in two listed groups
and a financial institution. Mr. Yuen holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration. He is a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (UK) and of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a senior member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Marketing, a member of the Hong Kong
Securities Institute, the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource
Management, the Chartered Institute of Marketing (UK), the Hong
Kong Institute of Purchasing & Supply and Society of Registered
Financial Planners. Mr. Yuen is also a certified risk planner.

Mr. Lui Wai Leung, Alan, aged 39, is the Senior Accounting
Manager of the Group. He is responsible for the financial reporting
of the Group and focus on the financing operations, securities &
treasury investment. He holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Business
Administration and he joined the Group in 1997.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 20 and
21 respectively to the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 29.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in notes 17 and 19 to the financial statements,
respectively.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Details of the major properties of the Group at 31 March 2010 are
set out on page 139.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS

Movements in the share capital and warrants of the Company are
set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements during the year in the reserves of the
Group and the Company are set out in note 37 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:
Chan Heng Fai

Chan Tong Wan

Chan Yoke Keow

Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann
Chan Tung Moe

(resigned on 23 October 2009)
(resigned on 23 October 2009)

Non-executive directors:
Fong Kwok Jen

Independent non-executive directors:
Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Da Roza Joao Paulo
Chian Yat Ping
Wong Tat Keung

(resigned on 7 December 2009)
(appointed on 7 December 2009)

Alternate directors:
Wooldridge Mark Dean (alternate to Fong Kwok Jen)

In accordance with Articles 78 and 79 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Wong Tat Keung retires by rotation and, being
eligible, offers himself for re-election. Mr. Chan Tong Wan and Ms.
Chan Yoke Keow will hold office until the 2010 AGM, and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. The term of office
of each non-executive director and independent non-executive
director is the period up to his retirement by rotation and each
one of them can be re-appointed in accordance with the above
articles.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

ESEHREE
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FARBEAREBBMA/L - ARAFZHEEE
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RIENE
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R
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Da Roza Joao Paulo
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Wooldridge Mark Dean (BBt 2 ZIT£ %)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

ESEHREE

ESREF 2ER

RZZE-EF=—A=+—0 EEEARAF=E
BITBABRAR R SEEMAEEE(TE
RESFNBEGRO(ESHRKIBBEED ) EXV
')z - RO REST - BEIRER
HRHAEGHIEXVEE TR ESHDHEME AR
AINBERBEZZFBIR AR (TEART]) 2
HZEAR (BEESREZSHFMAEGEMZE
B EERRIERE 2 EEHAR) » R
BB AN B E IS0 5 352 (678 5 0 Nz g Frat
Btz #Em kAR - SR EWARAATE £
MARERETESFR FNEESFAZAEFME R
RNEIRB Rz A BINT

#E
() FARFAEREME0.OIETZERR

Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held  the Company %
FrFE 81T HAEABE BT
EEME 55 ZEREA BB D%
Chan Heng Fai Beneficial owner 1,037,895,486 39.3
SYER= BB A
Chan Yoke Keow Beneficial owner 45,279,741 1.71
BRESE EmlEA
Held by trust (Note 1) 78,848,352 2.99
AfEEEREE (FiEE1)
Held by controlled corporations (Note 2) 585,800,065 22.18
FrizEslz AR Aa (HiE2)
709,928,158 26.88
Fong Kwok Jen Beneficial owner 7,333,600 0.28
BRI EmEA
Chan Tong Wan Beneficial owner 8,145,522 0.31
PR E BB A
Wong Dor Luk, Peter Beneficial owner 280,000 0.01
T %% BB A
Da Roza Joao Paulo Beneficial owner 4,800 0
BB A
Held by spouse (Note 3) 360,000 0.01
BEERFA (MEE3)
364,800 0.01
1,763,947,566 66.79
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(b) Share options

Name of director

BEEHR

Chan Heng Fai
PRIEIE

Chan Yoke Keow
BRELE
Chan Tong Wan

BRACE

Fong Kwok Jen
g

Wong Dor Luk, Peter
F %%

Da Roza Joao Paulo

Date granted

R A

11.15.2004
5.22.2006

11.1.2004
11.15.2004
2.18.2009

11.15.2004
5.22.2006
11.15.2004

11.15.2004

5.27.2005

Exercisable period

AATEHR

11.20.2004-5.8.2013
5.22.2006-5.8.2013

11.1.2004-5.8.2013
11.20.2004-5.8.2013
2.18.2009-5.8.2013

11.20.2004-5.8.2013
5.22.2006-5.8.2013
11.20.2004-5.8.2013

11.20.2004-5.8.2013

5.28.2005-5.8.2013

ESEHEE
(b) BRE
Number of Percentage
Exercise share options  of the issued
price outstanding share capital of
per share at 31.3.2010 the Company
R=F—%F
=A=+-—H TN
& RATEEZ EBRITRAE
BRITEE BRERE Bkl
HK$ %
BT
0.1583 123,885,800 4.69
0.1534 49,008,000 1.86
0.1567 15,313,500 0.58
0.1583 35,731,500 1.35
0.0684 18,376,200 0.70
0.1583 15,313,500 0.58
0.1534 5,104,500 0.19
0.1583 4,594,050 0.17
0.1583 3,062,700 0.12
0.1469 2,041,800 0.08
272,431,550 10.32




(c) Warrants

Name of director

EEHR

Chan Heng Fai
P&

Notes:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Capacity
55

Beneficial owner
EmlEA

ESEHREE

(9]

Number of
warrants held

FiFRREEHE

172,000,000

1. These shares are owned by a discretionary trust, HSBC Trust
(Cook Island) Limited. Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow (“Mrs. Chan”) is
one of the discretionary objects. Mrs. Chan is the spouse of Mr.

Chan Heng Fai.

2. These shares are owned by Prime Star Group Co. Ltd., in which
Mrs. Chan has 100% equity interests.

3. These shares are owned by Ms. Josephina B. Ozorio, the spouse
of Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo.

RREE

Number of
underlying shares

B R 2 H
172,000,000
et
. RERHBE—ER

Percentage

of Issued

share Capital of
the Company %
EARARE BT
BRABDEE%

6.51

## = L HSBC Trust

(Cook Island) Limited#4d » MR EB L+
(IBRZ L) TIZBEEERBAZ — « BRE
TAREEELE 2 S -

2. ZRERMAMRLZLES 2R Prime
Star Group Co. Ltd. A °

3. #ZZEMK1HhDa Roza Joao Paulot 4 2 FiE
{8Josephina B. OzorioZz LA °

17

—Z2FEFR

.

Annual Report 2010



BRDA

£E

(Sged

Xpress Group Limited

18

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Options
Particulars of the Company’s and subsidiary’s share option schemes
are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share
options in issue during the year:

ESEHREE

BRE

KRARIEMB AR Z BRI BEEH N5
AHIFE36 ©

TREBARANFEARZEBITHEREFS

Exercise Adjustment* Exercise  Cancelled
Date price Outstanding during during during Outstanding
Name of director granted Exercisable period per share at4.1.2009 the year the year the year at3.31.2010
R-BERF R-2-ZF
BR mA—H =A=+-A
EIpE REBH AT THE WATE  FRER ERTRE EREEH i RAT 6
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Category 1: Directors
£ EF
Chan Heng Fai 11.1.2004  11.1.2004-5.8.2013 0.1567 15,000,000 313,500 (15,313,500) - -
[FLEN 11.15.2004  11.20.2004-5.8.2013  0.1583 147,000,000 3,072,300  (26,186,500) - 123,885,800
5222006  5.22.2006-5.8.2013 0.1534 120,000,000 2,508,000 (73,500,000) - 49,008,000
Mrs. Chan 11.1.2004  11.1.2004-5.8.2013 0.1567 15,000,000 313,500 - - 15,313,500
Bt 11.15.2004  11.20.2004-5.8.2013  0.1583 35,000,000 731,500 - - 35,731,500
2.18.2009  2.18.2009-5.8.2013 0.0684 18,000,000 376,200 - - 18,376,200
Chan Tong Wan 11.15.2004  11.20.2004-5.8.2013  0.1583 15,000,000 313,500 - - 15,313,500
BRaE 5222006  5.22.2006-5.8.2013 0.1534 5,000,000 104,500 - - 5,104,500
2.18.2009 2.18.2009-5.8.2013 0.0684 18,000,000 376,200 (18,376,200) - -
Fong Kwok Jen 11.15.2004  11.20.2004-5.8.2013  0.1583 4,500,000 94,050 - - 4,594,050
BElig
Wong Dor Luk, Peter 11.15.2004  11.20.2004-5.8.2013  0.1583 3,000,000 62,700 - - 3,062,700
B2
Da Roza Joao Paulo 5.27.2005 5.28.2005-5.8.2013 0.1469 2,000,000 41,800 - - 2,041,800
Chian Yat Ping Ivy 12.21.2006  1.30.2007-5.8.2013 0.1534 2,000,000 41,800 - (2,041,800) -
B
Total for directors 399,500,000 8,349,550 (133,376,200)  (2,041,800) 272,431,550
EEMERE
Category 2: Others
£ BEfbAL
11.15.2004  11.20.2004-5.8.2013  0.1583 22,000,000 455,202 - (1,118,392) 21,336,810
5222006  5.22.2006-5.8.2013 0.1534 10,000,000 209,000 - - 10,209,000
4.18.2007  4.18.2007-5.8.2013 0.2841 1,500,000 31,350 - - 1,531,350
Total for employees (Note) 33,500,000 695,552 - (1,118,392) 33,077,160
(& S Frig s (Fiet)
Total for all categories 433,000,000 9,045,102 (133,376,200) (3,160,192) 305,508,710

FRB BRI h %R

* Following the issue of the offer shares in May 2009, the number
of and the exercise price of the outstanding share options were
adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Rule 17.03(13)
of the Listing Rules and the supplementary guidance issued by the
Stock Exchange on 5 September 2005.

Note: During the year, Mr. Chan Tung Moe and Ms. Chan Sook Jin,
Mary-ann were resigned as directors and their options were
reclassified from the directors category to other category.

* RZZENFRAFTRERNEK - BERHR
T2 RS E RITREDRE LmRRIE
17.03(13)FZIRE Mt RPN —EZThF LA
T AR 2 TR T ATEE

Hiet - FR - REREERRRE LT EREEER
% WEZBRERESENET )RR EM
ALTHRA o
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At 31 March 2010, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme was 305,508,710, representing 11.57% of
the share of the Company in issue at that date.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contract of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2010, according to the register of interest in shares
and underlying shares and short positions kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and so far as is known to
or can be ascertained after reasonable enquiries by the directors,
the persons (other than the Directors of the Company or their
respective associate) who were interested in 5% or more in the
issued share capital of the Company are as follows:

Nature of interest

BEMtE

Name

=1

Beneficial owner
EmEAA

Prime Star Group Co., Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, no person other
than the directors of the Company whose interests are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in
shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest of
5% or more in the issued share capital of the Company, and short
positions in the shares and underlying shares that was required to
be recorded in the register of interest pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

ESEHREE

RZE—ZFF=A=1+—8 ' BEERETE
ERLERRITEEBREY R ROHEE R
305,508,710% " (hARFAIRZ B 2 BEITIKR
511.57% °

B EXBEEESN - ARRISEAEM KB QRN
FREAREHRES LT - BERRT
SEARUMBEBARR ST EMEABRE 2K
(B E

EENENZER

BRNER A B ISR M s 44 PR E Sl - AN FE
HAEMKERRMET ERNARREZTER
SRR AR LD BN F R F REAIRRE
DAREM EMEREL ©

FERR

RZF-FTF=ZA=1+—H  REAXFER
&5 M B GRPIE3361FF B 2 B D MAER AR
S MORRE LM - WRIBE =B AP
RIEH A BEREMEE - TIAL(ERT
EEIRESAZBBEALHRINEEART
EEBITIRARS %A FHEAS

Number of shares/

underlying shares held %

Frism 1, AHEROBE Bkt
585,800,065 22.18

BREXHEEN  RZTE-—ZF=A=+—

B BRAETERSENEXESFREBITERA
BRI RBBR 2] — B2 A RAE
=0 MEEMALEREAARRIZEITR
A5% A s R ARIRE S M A E RIS
336{FC AR B R 2 I fn RABRER AR -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company date 8 January
2010, the Company and Corporate Space Pte Ltd, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, have entered into a
conditional sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Chan Heng Fai
("Mr. Chan") on 7 January 2010, pursuant to which Corporate
Space Pte Ltd agreed to acquire 100% of the issued and paid-up
capital of Expats Residences Pte Ltd (“Expats”) and the shareholder
loans owing by Expats to Mr. Chan for a consideration of HK$40.7
million (”Acquisition”). The Consideration was satisfied on
completion by the issuance of 301,481,481 new Shares credited as
fully paid at the issue price of HK$0.135 per Share to Mr. Chan.

As Mr. Chan is a substantial Shareholder, the Chairman of the
Board and an executive director, Mr. Chan is a connected person
of the Company and the Acquisition constituted a connected
transaction and discloseable transaction for the Company under
the Listing Rules. The Acquisition was subject to the independent
shareholders’ approval. The ordinary resolution approving the
Acquisition was passed by the independent shareholders of the
Company by poll at the extraordinary general meeting held on 19
February 2010.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers respectively accounted for less than 30%
of the Group's total turnover and purchases.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after the reporting period are set out
in note 49 to the financial statements.

ESEHREE

BRERX S

MU ARNB AT —EF—ANBZAMH
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HEREEEE(TREEDITCBEREEER
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied
throughout the year ended 31 March 2010 with the Code of Best
Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Listing Rules”). Detailed information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report contained in pages 22 to 26 of the Annual Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Lo and Kwong C.P.A Company Limited as auditors
of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAN TONG WAN
MANAGING DIRECTOR

23 July 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and strives to continually improve on its
governance processes as articulated in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out by the Stock Exchange.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is presently composed of
seven members, comprising three executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.
The Directors are, collectively and individually, aware of their
responsibilities to the shareholders. The Directors’ profile are set
out on page 10 and 11 of this Annual Report. The relationship
among members of the Board are also disclosed.

The composition of the Board during the year and up to the date
of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Heng Fai (Managing Chairman)

Mr. Chan Tong Wan (Managing Director)

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann (resigned on 23 October 2009)
Mr. Chan Tung Moe (resigned on 23 October 2009)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs")
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza

Ms. Chian Yat Ping (resigned on 7 December 2009)
Mr. Wong Tat Keung (appointed on 7 December 2009)

The Board is responsible for directing the Group to success and
enhancing shareholders’ value by formulating the Group's overall
strategy, key objectives and policies. The Board monitors and
oversees the operating and financial performance of the Group
pursuant to these objectives.

To assist the Board in its functions, the Board established and
delegated specific responsibilities to two Board Committees,
namely the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
The respective roles and responsibilities of each Board committee,
their work and activities are included in this Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflicts of interest and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive Directors make positive contributions
to the orderly management and effective operation of the
Company.

The Board has also delegated the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group's business to the management team.

CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer are segregated and their positions held by different
individuals to ensure their respective independence, accountability
and responsibility. The Chairman is responsible for providing
leadership to and overseeing the function of the Board while the
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer are responsible for
implementing the Board'’s strategy and managing the Group’s
business and operations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently four non-executive Directors on the Board,
three of whom are independent. They have been appointed for a
specific term and subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and thus submit
themselves, on a rotation basis, for re-election by shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 February 1995 and
comprises the three INEDs:

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Tat Keung (appointed on 7 December 2009)
Ms. Chian Yat Ping (resigned on 7 December 2009)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee was formulated in
accordance with the requirements of the new Code on Corporate
Governance Practices. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
include the review of financial information, overseeing the
financial reporting system and internal control procedures as well
as maintaining a working relationship with the external auditors.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Audit Committee met
2 times to review, consider and discuss: the appointment, scope,
plan and fee of the external auditors; the external auditors’ audit
findings covering internal control and risk management issues;
the interim and annual financial results and statements and other
financial reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 30 September
2005 and currently comprises of the one executive Director and
two INEDs:

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter
Ms. Chan Yoke Keow

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee was
formulated in accordance with the requirements of the new Code
on Corporate Governance Practices. The primary objectives of
the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages of Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice
and conditions. The human resources department is responsible
for collection and administration of the human resources data
and making recommendations to the Remuneration Committee
for consideration. The Remuneration Committee consults the
Chairman and/or the Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer
of the Company about these recommendations on remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the year
to review matters mainly concerning a review on remuneration
and performance of executive Directors and senior management
of the Company, as well as directors’ fees.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT BOARD AND COMMITTEE

MEETINGS

The Directors’ attendance at Board meetings, Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee meetings during the year are set

out below:

Directors

Mr. Chan Heng Fai

Mr. Chan Tong Wan

Ms. Chan Yoke Keow

Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann
(resigned on 23 October 2009)

Mr. Chan Tung Moe

(resigned on 23 October 2009)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Joao Paulo Da Roza

Ms. Chian Yat Ping

(resigned on 7 December 2009)
Mr. Wong Tat Keung

(appointed on 7 December 2009)

Number of meeting held during
the year

s
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Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held

HEEERE BTEERR

Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee
E=g EREES FMZES
5/5 N/A N/A
5/5 TEA NaEA
5/5 N/A N/A
5/5 TEA NEA
5/5 N/A 11
5/5 T 1”n
3/3 N/A N/A
33 TEA NEA
3/3 N/A N/A
33 TEA NEA
3/5 N/A N/A
3/5 TEA NEA
5/5 2/2 11
5/5 212 11
5/5 2/2 11
5/5 212 1”n
3/3 11 N/A
33 11 NEA
2/2 11 N/A
212 1”1 NEA
5 2 1

5 2 1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
directors (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct throughout the year ended
31 March 2010.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Directors have conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries,
which has covered major and material controls in areas of financial,
operations, compliance and risk management of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the accounts of the Group and that the accounts are issued in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the external auditors provided
the following services to the Group:
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HK$'000

FH&TT

Audit services ZERTE 600
Non-audit services IERZERTS

— Other professional services — B H R -

Total FE 600

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded
as "related parties” under the applicable accounting standards.
Details of these transactions are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated accounts.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ERESMEHBEMBIRAT

LO AND KWONG C.P.A. COMPANY LIMITED

AUDIT ¢ TAX ¢« BUSINESS ADVISORY

To the Shareholders of XPRESS GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xpress
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out in pages 29 to 137, which
comprise the consolidated and Company’s statements of financial
position as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Lo and Kwong C.P.A. Company Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chan Chi Kei, Ronald

Practising Certificate Number: P04255

Suites 216-218, 2/F., Shui On Centre,
6-8 Harbour Road, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong

23 July 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 March 2010

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income

Gain (loss) on disposal of financial
assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value gain (loss) on financial
assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value gain (loss) on revaluation of
investment properties, net

Reversal of impairment loss on
trade receivables

Impairment loss on trade receivables

Administrative expenses

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment loss on
interest in an associate

Profit (loss) from operations
Finance costs
Share of results of associates

Profit (loss) before income tax
Income tax expenses

Profit (loss) for the year from
continuing operations

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Profit for the year from
discontinued operation

Profit (loss) for the year

HREEER
Yo
SHERAK

£
Hi2ERA
HERDFERA
Bz EHEEZ
Yoz (B51R)
BRAVEFARGZZ
TREEZATE
Yoz (B51R)
BEREMRZAYE
Yok (B518) F 88
EHRUTIRRERR
B
E BRI RERR
TBAX
AfHESREE  RE
EE

R—TEB & RS 2 RE

EE
RERr(5R)
NEBE RN EEE

BRATEBATERR (B1]R)
FEH s

REFRREXBCFE
R (1)

BRIEREEK
REERUIERERH L
FRER

FEBEN(EHE)

Notes

P aE

2009
—TENF
HK$'000
T

93,399
(17,250)

76,149
6,891

(970)

(27,052)
(12,277)
1,551
(142,42;)
(8,140)

(3,600)

(109,877)
(5,726)
(10,595)

(126,198)
(208)

(126,406)

14,819

(111,587)
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT  #R éuﬁzﬁ iR

For the year ended 31 March 2010

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings (loss) per share for
profit (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company
during the year

From continuing and
discontinued operation
Basic
Diluted

From continuing operations
Basic
Diluted

2009
—TENF
HK$'000
FHT
G
RABHEEA (111,587)
IR A RS -
(111,587)
FRADTEE AEEER
(BR)2EREF(EE)
FEHBERCARIEEER
EHR (6.12) cents &1Ll
i3 N/A i A
REBECEER
AR (6.94) cents /&1l
i

N/A NEFA




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 March 2010

Profit (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Exchange fluctuation reserve:
Share of other comprehensive income of
associates
Exchange differences on translating foreign
operations
Fair value change on available-for-sale
financial assets

Other comprehensive income (loss)
for the year

Total comprehensive income (loss)
for the year

Total comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

H= IS
2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FET
FERA(EE) (111,587)
Hit2EWA (EE)
& H B
DIREEE N E E M2 E WA
(2,499)
RREGINETSMEEZ
JEH =% (17,740)
AHHESHEEZ AFE
Lok (15,004)
EEHMEEWA ()
(35,243)
EEZERA(SE)EE
(146,830)
FEiEEEWA (518 485 -
KRAREEA (146,830)
IR RS -
(146,830)
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Xpress Group Limited

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March 2010

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Investment properties

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in associates

Long term deposits
Available-for-sale financial assets
Goodwill

Loan receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Loan receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Amounts due from associates

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables and
accruals

Bank overdraft

Borrowings

Convertible debentures

Tax payables

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities
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Notes

P aE

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

27

28
25

29
20
21
26
26

30
26
31
32

21
20

R-ZT—ZEF=A=+—H
Group
r5E
2009
—ETNEF
HK$'000
TET

61,783
19,162
250,506
8,306
14,095
12,178

10,544
736

377,310

491

22,426
6,511

102,885
7,648

3,973
56,828

200,762

38,514
11,118

15,421
1,387

66,440

134,322

511,632

Company
NS

2009
—TENF
HK$'000
FHET

1,050

52,853
401,230
3,809

16,524

475,466

3,000

587
155,785

159,372

316,094

341,502



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION  Bf #% Ak J
At 31 March 2010 RZE—EF=A=+—H
Group Company
rEE AAT
2009 2009
—ETNEF ZETNhE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 FHL FTAT
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Borrowings = 31 62,942 -
Deferred taxation EIEFHIR 33 20,955 224
83,897 224
Net assets EEEE 427,735 341,278
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAXR#E
Share capital AR 35 18,371 18,371
Reserves E 37 409,333 322,907
Equity attributable to owners KA R EH AELER
of the Company 427,704 341,278
Non-controlling interests FIERER 31 -
Total equity RSB 427,735 341,278

The financial statements on pages 29 to 137 were approved and  $E29ZE137EZHBHRERER_E—ZF LA
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 July 2010and ~ —+=HHEESE & NMRETZE - WH T

are signed on its behalf by: EEREREE:
Chan Heng Fai Chan Tong Wan
BR1E1E BR&E
Managing Chairman Managing Director
BiTEE EFLESTE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2010

At 1 April 2008

Share of other comprehensive income
of associates

Fair value change on avallable-for-sale
financial assets

Exchange differences on transating of
foreign operations

Other comprehensive loss for the year
Loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year
Evercise of 2009 Warrants
subscription rights (Note 353)
Exercise of share options (Note 36)
Transfer to reserves upon exercise of
share options
Transfer to reserves upon cancellation of
share options
Share of reserve of an associate
Employee share-based compensation
expenses recognised
Arising from reclassification of property,
plant and equipment to
investment properties
Arising from disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 43)

At 31 March 2009

AfHELREE, ATERD

RESENZBAELZEL
=

ERELZEGR

FRAMERLE

Iﬁ@ AhiTARERE

REERRENERERE

15 BELARE

B RO FES .
Wéfﬁi
BB HERRE
ERENEES

i

S A g 34
In = *E E Eb
HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=+—HILF

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
ARIBEARLEE
Employee
Assets  Investment share-based
Share Share  Warrant  revaluation  revaluation  Translation compensation Accumulated
capital  premium  reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
HRe
ARER  GEER  REEf xfiFEEL
Bx B i R B BEER ERRE  2nER a3t

HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

TEL TR TER Thr Thr TET TER TEr  TER

18191 729399 5,160 8,038 15,004 44,053 3275 (265782) 557338

_ - - - - (2499) - - 4
- - - - (15,004) - - - (15,004
- - - - - (17,740) - - (177w0)
- - - - (15,004) (20239 - - W)
- - - - - - - (111,587)  (111,587)
- - - - (15,004) (20239 - (111,587)  (146,830)
- 3 - - - - - - 3
180 1,044 - - - - - - 1,24
- 90 - - - - (o00) - -
- _ - - - - (1,358) 1358 -
- - - - - - 105 - 105
- - - - - - 3097 - 3097
- - - 12,767 - - - - 12,767
18311 731346 5,160 20,805 - 3814 4219 (376,011) 427,704

Non-
controlling
interests

FehRER
HK$000
7

1332

Total
equity

i
HK§'000
T
559,670
(2.499)
(15,004

(17,740)

(35.283)
(W 580)

(146,830)

3
124

105

3,097

12,767

(230)

47,735



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2010

At 1 April 2009

Share of other comprehensive income
of associates

Exchange differences on translating of
foreign operations

Other comprehensive income for the year
Profis for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Open offer (Note 35(c)
Issue of consideration shares (Note 35(d)
Evercise of 2009 Warrants
subscription rights (Note 35)
Exercise of share options (Note 36)
Transfer to reserves upon exercise of
share options
Transfer to reserves upon cancellation of
share options
Share of reserve of an associate
Employee share-based compensation
expenses recognised
Arising from reclassifcation of property,
plant and equipment to
investment properties

At 31 March 2010

RUEEASHRETZEY
28

EREMEENA
R

EREMNNEE
DEEEM:
BRERG

P

fEER %)
REREE SRR

[iENE R e

W-E-8£Zf=1-H

— A E N2
RERREH
HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=+—HILF
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
ARIBEARLEE
Employee
Assets  Investment share-based
Share Share  Warrant  revaluation  revaluation  Translation compensation Accumulated
capital  premium  reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
HRe
ARER  BEER  REEf %f17EE2
Bx  BfiE i R fE  AERR ERRE  2hER it
HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TR TER Thn T TET TR TEr  TER
18371 731346 5,160 20,305 - 23814 409 (376,011) 427,704
- - - - - 2140 - - 2140
- - - - - 21974 - - U9
- - - - - - -0
- - - - - - - 19005 191,005
- - - - - 2,114 - 191,005 218119
3674 14,697 - - - - - - 1831
3015 3768 - - - - - - 40700
14 115 - - - - - - 129
13317783 - - - - - - 1907
- 1814 - - - - (1814) - -
- - - - - - (39 329 -
- - - - - - n - n
- - - - - - 303 - 30
- - - 48,205 - - - - B5
26408 803,400 5,160 69,010 - 50,928 2,450 (184,677) 772,679

Non-
controlling
interests

FehER
HK$000
A7

31

Total
equity

SR
HK§'000
AT
41735
2,140

24974

7114
190974

218,088
18,371
40,700

129
19077

303

48205

12,679
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

2009
—ETNEF
HK$’000
FAT
Cash flows from operating activities HREKEEBZRERE
Profit (loss) for the year from continuing BTSRRI 2 15844
operations before income tax EBERRF (EE) (126,198)
Profit for the year from discontinued BRATS B B IEEE
operation before income tax EBFE R R 15,378
(110,820)
Adjustments for : TS IRFEE
Fair value (gain) loss on revaluation of BHREWE T ANTFE
investment properties, net (Uzs) EsiE 55 12,277
Gain on bargain purchase BT -
Depreciation e 8,037
Interest income FEMKA (6,457)
Interest expenses on borrowings and BERTBREESZ
convertible debentures FEFE 6,888
Share of results of associates AN (o kNS E St 10,595
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  FE{< 8 & 2B 84 655
Write off the property, plant and WsEYIZE - WE KRG
equipment -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE  BEN
equipment Rl -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2 W (30,320)
Impairment loss on B TYIEIE 2 REEE
— available-for-sale financial assets —AtEESREE 8,140
— loan receivables —EER 163
— trade receivables — B 5 EIWGRIA -
— other receivables — E i JERIE 16,408
— interest in an associate —R—EBEREZ
gy 3,600
Equity settled share-based payment SR 2 R
expenses b3 3,097
Reversal of impairment loss on B ZEWIE 2 RE
trade receivables zgi=teq (1,551)
Operating profit (loss) before working BEESEBF L LE
capital changes m A (E518) (79,288)
Increase in financial assets at fair value BAFERABRZ
through profit or loss B EE E N (60,115)
Decrease in inventories FaRL 185
Decrease in trade and other receivables, &5 REMAEWKTIE -
deposits and prepayments e RIENFRIBER LD 34,010
Decrease (increase) in loan receivables FEUE SR A (38 0) (4,276)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due i A YNCIUENE= 1)
from associates b 127
Increase in trade and other payables and 8 5 [ B {th fE (< 5518
accruals LA FEET & F4E hN 29,974
Decrease in amounts due to associates RS R RIRIBER L (183)
Cash generated from (used in) operations & & 2515 (FTH)IR & (79,566)
Tax refund (paid) REI(EM)E (5,419)
Net cash flows generated from (used in) A& EEAT{E(FTH) Rz
operating activities LB FEE (84,985)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

Cash flows from investing activities

Decrease in available-for-sale
financial assets

Net cash inflow from acquisition of
a subsidiary

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

Purchase of prepaid lease payment

Purchase of investment properties

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Acquisition of addition shares
in an associate

Interest received

Net cash outflow from disposal of
subsidiaries

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of borrowings

New borrowings raised

Proceeds from open offer

Proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of share option and warrants

Interest paid

Redemption of the convertible debentures
by the Group

Repayment of finance lease payment

Net cash flows from (used in) financing
activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash

Bank overdraft

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FiBT
RETHHERE
AN ESEEER D
WEg—EMB AR Z

WEMAFEE -
BRIRITFEOR LD 4,957
BAME - BE MK

(5,938)
BATENHEERE -
BAKEDE -
HEYE - BERE

FriS a8 -
iRl lN|

BN (217)
BUF B 6,457
HEWNBARIRS

mFEE (15,155)
1R BT %

TEFE (9,896)
BEEBHsHERE
EEEE (16,641)
FiEEE 797
NHBEEFSHE -
AT B AR 4 N R AR e

mEE 1 TR (7 BT 1S 50E 1,227
BEAFE (7,637)
7R £ B fE O] AT A%

&% (44,609)
EEmERERE (102)
BETEATZ(ATH)

B s FEE (66,965)
BHeRBESEEEE M

ORlA) 35 (161,846)
RENzRERBELZE

HE 223,315
SNERE AR

(4,641)
RERZRERBESZEE

EH 56,828
ReRBRSEEEBE8

Ay
RITHEFENRIRE 56,828
RITEX -

56,828
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Xpress Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong. The
address of the Company’s registered office and principal place
of business is 24th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham
Street, Central, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) include investment
holding, property investment, hotel operations, securities
investment, treasury investment and financing business. The
Group was also engaged in travel related services, which was
discontinued during the year ended 31 March 2009 (Note
10).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 23 July
2010.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
all the revised HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”), Amendments to Standards and Interpretations
(“INT(s)") (hereinafter collectively referred to as “New
HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") which are effective for the
Group's financial year beginning on 1 April 2009.

Except as described below, the adoption of the New
HKFRSs had no material effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting
periods.

i.  HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology
changes (including revised titles for the financial
statements) and changes in the format and content of
the financial statements.

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

—REHR

FFEREEBRRR(TARA]) REF LT
ML IAT B REMELZER AT -
AABZFEMRER R EREE IR
FEPREMAI0-44EERBET 024
B ARBRNETEMEIZMBRA
m (B2 |) £ e

AR REMNBAR(HEIAER]) 2 E
DERBICELRR  WERE  BEZE
% BHRE  PERERBEED - K
BB BIREMERBRY - HEREZE
TEENFA=+HILEFERLEEE
(MF3E10) ©

BT ZEF=A=1+—HILEFEZH
BHREREN - E—ZTFLA - +=HKE
EE AT -

R REETERMBRE
ER(TEBMBIREER D)

AEBRAFEEERERBTBGTMA
S([BAGTMAE DRM  YR_F
ZNFOA-BRBZAREYREEE
M FIBRERT BB EHRERER - BB
SETERN([BEBGFER]) - ERERT R
aE((2E]) (ITXsE A FI'BMH
WELER]) ©

B T XXFTatsh - BRANFTR] B BRI IR E 2
A AEEE RS BE S ME A M
BHRWBEEATE

i BBEIEREIR(—FEELF

AEET) M B2 23

FREHEAEIR(CETLFLE
FEIAZEMBE S (BREESM T
BRIZE)  WREMBERRERA



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

ii.

.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting,
specifies how an entity should report information about
its operating segments, based on information about
the components of the entity that is available to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
allocating resources to the segments and assessing their
performance. The standard also requires the disclosure
of information about the products and services provided
by the segments, the geographical areas in which the
Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s major
customers. The Group concluded that the operating
segments determined in accordance with HKFRS 8 are
the same as the business segments previously identified
under HKAS 14. These revised disclosures, including the
related revised comparative information, are shown in
Note 6 to the financial statements.

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures)

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require additional disclosures
about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. Fair value
measurements related to items recorded at fair value are
to be disclosed by sources of inputs using a three-level
fair value hierarchy, by class, for all financial instruments
recognised at fair value. In addition, a reconciliation
between the beginning and ending balance is now
required for level 3 fair value measurements, as well
as significant transfers between levels in the fair value
hierarchy. The amendments also clarify the requirements
for liquidity risk disclosures with respect to derivative
transactions and assets used for liquidity management.
The fair value measurement disclosures are presented
in Note 46 to the financial statements while the revised
liquidity risk disclosures are presented in Note 45 to the
financial statements.

B %R R M

HE—Z

—TFE=A=T-ALFE

2. BAXMAREETERMBRE
ZR(TEBMBREER D @)

ii.

il

BEBYBHREERESHAZE D
7
EAMBHRELENELSHRMAE LS
AHERIE 14D B2 - % ERE
FEREEMAIRE A HE BEERE
ERNEERES DB LFHEERR
SHZERAKIDER - 2HEH
HEEDEZER - ZERTRE R
BERM B FTREER KRS - A%
B ARG RNRERERT
BEPZWaEMER - NEBERER
BEEBVBREEFESRAEE
REDBRAERIEE LSS ERFR
TASRPTAB R 2 55 0 B0AE R » 5
RIETRE(BREBEEITHLRE
FORPBERERM T2

EHTARKEZNE(EEUE
HEERE7H (KET) 2@ T
A %E)
FREMBREERNETR(EFT)RE
AR RNFEFERRBESRREL
BIMKEE - BAARFEARZIER
ZRNFEFEAMARTERR A
BEMTA FERA=ELFER
WIS Z B ARRIZIRR T LARKEE -
AN - RBRE=E R TETEAR
NFERBASER 2 EREBRGET
HAT) B ER AR A AR 2 IR o LEIERT AR
NEBFEBTETIARS KRERS
BeEECEEZRDECRMITE
BIE - AHEMAEBZHBEEERME
WRMETA627) > MBI RBDE
TR ERNIMBHRRM T2
5l
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

2. BAXMAREETERMBRE
ZR(TEBMBREER D @)

AREEN EN I FFHHRRERTIIER
B R ARERZFE] MIERT B BRI 53R

Xpress Group Limited
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these financial statements. HAER o
HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong EBBRMELER BN ENE ST RS
Financial Reporting Standards! B9 (55T AEB
HKFRS 1 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time BRI B REAED FEMBRELRE 158
Amendments Adoption of Hong Kong Financial B8 (BFIR) CHESNEV TS
Reporting Standards — Additional PRS- B X
Exemptions for First-time Adopters? BRNE 2 BN G2
HKFRS 1 Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time BRI B REAED FEMBRELRE 158
Amendment Adoption of Hong Kong Financial B8 (BFIR) CHESNEVE TS
Reporting Standards - Limited PRS- B X
Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7 EMEEEETAYE
Disclosures for First-time Adopters* R B TR E
®E 2 BR# R
HKFRS 2 Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based BB REAED BB RELRE25E
Amendments Payment — Group Cash - settled B2 (BRI ) (BETAS) LARR D B EL R
Share-based Payment Transactions? JF—EFEHSEE
VAR AR A BB 2 155K
25
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations’ BB RELED A0
EEFHACSCHD)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments® BEMBREAER SFT As
9%
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures’ HES &R BE 55
SB2455 (K1E3T)
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial HES &R S A B B IRE
Statements’ 275 (17T
HKAS 32 Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial e A EREINYE
Amendment Instruments: Presentation — FIWUEFIA)  (BIIN)EmIEA:
Classification of Rights Issues? 25| — s ka3
HKAS 39 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial e A ERE399E
Instruments: Recognition, and F395(IBETAR) (BiIAN)&@T A :
Measurement — Eligible Hedged Items! EARAE -8B’
#HRIEE"
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 EiE (BEPREt 5 Eh (BRI EmE2E
Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum Funding M= ZED)-REF145
Requirements ZEg)-2E (BIRNREESRE
S1RBETAR) 2 TERTFIES
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to 5 (BPRE 7% REAEADIRIERSEE
Owners' mERE
ZEg)-3%E
EAVE
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with EE(EEHE URATAKESREE
Equity Instruments* mERE
ZEg)-3%E
195



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to
HKFRS 5 included
in Improvements to
HKFRSs issued
in October 2008

Discontinued Operations - Plan to sell the
controlling interest in a subsidiary’

HK Interpretation 4
(Revised in
December 2009)

Leases — Determination of the Length of
Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong
Land Leases?

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements
to HKFRSs 2009 which sets out amendments to a number
of HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies
and clarifying wording. The amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS
38, HK(FRIC)-Int 9 and HK(FRIC)-Int 16 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009 while the
amendments to HKFRS 5, HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS
36 and HKAS 39 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2010, although there are separate
transitional provisions for each standard or interpretation. The
HKICPA has further issued Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 in
May 2010 which are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011, as appropriate.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that except for
the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKFRS 9 and HKAS 27
(Revised) may result in changes in accounting policies, these
new and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group's results of operations and financial
position.

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

ERMAREETERMBRSE
ZR(TEBMBREER D @)

BEMBHRELEN BRILEEXE 58

E55(ERT) HE—RWEARZ
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BEREFE HE-EBTESLHED
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+=BiERD)

B EliES  BASMARDHH _F
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FOIHZEREWHME LR ZER] - £
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MRS ERNE25E - BAESTERIF38
% AR (ERMEHREREREE) -2
BEIRLEB (AR BHRERELZE
) —RESIR BTN _TTNFL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for the investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies below. The financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").
In addition, the financial statements include applicable
disclosure required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management'’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

3.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests represent the interests of
outside shareholders not held by the Group in the results
and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

3.4

Business Combinations

Acquisition of business is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in associates are initially
recognised in the consolidated statements of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets
of the associates, less any impairment in the value of
individual investments. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate exceeds the Group's interests in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in that associate), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are provided
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4

3.5

Associates (continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is not test for impairment
separately. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment as a single asset.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investments in associates. Any reversal
of impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Any excess of the Group'’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
investment in an associate is stated at cost less any
impairment losses. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE:BEHBE@)

POLICIES (continued)
3.5 JPEE(E)

3.5 Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Company’s
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the financial statements and
will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal
of foreign operation. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period except
for exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income,
in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’'s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods,
rendering of services, the use by others of the Group’s
assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends, net of
rebates and discounts. Revenue is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and when the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) Sale of goods is recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to
customer. This is usually taken as the time when
the goods are delivered and the customer has
accepted the goods.

(b) Sale of hotel accommodation is recognised upon
issuance of the hotel vouchers.

(c) License fees are recognised over the license
period.

(d) Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

(e) Rental income, including rentals invoiced in
advance from properties under operating leases, is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease.

(f)  Revenue from hotel operation is recognised upon
provision of services.

() Interest income from credit card receivables is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
on an accrual basis, except where a debt becomes
doubtful, in which case, recognition of interest
income is suspended until it is realised on a cash
basis.

(h) Other interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE
3. FESHBEREBE @)

3.7 BEHKX

B EREEREREM TR
ERREREIIELHEZAERE
EERABZEBERS  OBRZE
BEZMOKRA  BEEZFEERN KN
HEFREMEIHERL

RN & EREER S EREE
h 2 BERREMRERERA - #E
RERNZ EERART L

PrEEMEER AR EEE RS

3.8 BE&

R R MAE S 2 AEEK AR R
AOREEE (A )FIRR - WREREER
BRI ER D25

SUBEREME - ARERESRKGE
BHEEZHRBETXEZEER
TEABUIREBE AREEEF
RIR @ EE B 2 imE R AR
BEFRERED RS 2 EAETTR
BRI - MR SEESEM 2 TKES
BMOREEESRE AAREELES
DECRERIER D Z B EN L
EREHBZRESRE  BREZEL
FHREEZRESRRLINEEZ
Bz HtEE - EREHEBRESE
BEERGANER 2 BEER - R
REEREBEB TSN TR MR
[B] o

HEARRSELENR  BEHE
ZBRHEREFTAREZRIEER -

47

—Z2FEFR

-~

Annual Report 2010



Xpress Group Limited

48

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

Goodwill (continued)

Excess over the cost of business combinations

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition of
subsidiaries and associates (previously referred to as
negative goodwill), after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss of the consolidated income
statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items
of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss of the consolidated income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of the
lease term or 2% on
straight-line method
Leasehold Over the term of the lease or
improvements 6.67%-20% on straight-line

method, whichever is the
shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 20%-25% on reducing
motor vehicles balance method
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE:BEHBE@)

POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 3.9 Y¥ BERRE &)

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
estimated useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Anitem of property, plantand equipmentis derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item
is derecognised.

3.10 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. On initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at cost including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair value. Gain or loss arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

3.11 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other

than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. In addition, intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is indication that they may be
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another Standard, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under that
Standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another Standard, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase under that Standard.

3.12 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive
to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE:BEHBE@)

POLICIES (continued)
312 HE (&)

3.12 Leases (continued)

Leasehold land for own use

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of
lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, in which case the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is accounted for as operating leases and
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

3.13 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statements of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of
the three categories, including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), available-for-
sale ("AFS”), and loans and receivables. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is
included in net gain or loss.

Financial assets at FV/TPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories,
including financial assets held for trading and those
designed as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

e jtis a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designed and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE:BEHBE@)

POLICIES (continued)
313 £MTAE)

3.13 Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held
for trading may be designed as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group'’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designed as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve until the financial asset is disposed
of or determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss. (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for sales equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity investments, they are
measured at cost less any identified impairment loss at
the end of the reporting period. (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including long term deposits,
loan receivables, pledged bank deposits, trade and
other receivables, deposits, loan receivables, amounts
due from subsidiaries, amounts due from associates and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE:BEHBE@)

POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial Instruments (continued) 313 2@ AE)
Financial assets (continued) EREEE)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) BEEEHE ()

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is the difference between the
asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

In respect of available-for-sale equity securities,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss
are not reversed through profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investmentrevaluationreserve. Inrespect of available-for-
sale debt securities, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified into other financial liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees on points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis of which the interest expense is included in net
gain or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and accruals, bank overdraft, borrowings,
amounts due to subsidiaries and amounts due to
associates are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE:BEHBE@)

POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial Instruments (continued) 313 2@ T A (&)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued) SRIBERKREGE)
Equity instruments WRIETA

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when a financial asset is transferred, the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference R ER SR EER - ZIREER
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum B B 2 U R FE R B RS Efth 2T

of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
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carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised JERNRERE 2 ZENIERER -
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

3.14 Borrowings 314 BE

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Convertible debentures

Convertible debentures issued by the subsidiary of the
Company that contain both financial liability and equity
components are classified separately into respective
items on initial recognition. On initial recognition, the
fair value of the liability component is determined using
the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds
of the issue of the convertible debentures and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing
the call option for conversion of the debenture into
equity, is included in equity as convertible debenture
equity reserve.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component will remain in equity until conversion
or redemption of the debenture.

When the debenture is converted, the convertible
debenture equity reserve and the carrying value of
the liability component at the time of conversion, are
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the debenture is
redeemed, the convertible debenture equity reserve is
released directly to accumulated losses.

3.16 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated cost of completion and applicable selling
expenses.

3.17 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE:BEHBE@)

POLICIES (continued)
3.17 BiEH ()

3.17 Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

3.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For consolidated
statement of cash flows presentation, cash and cash
equivalents include bank overdraft which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

3.19 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the
issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated
with the issuing of shares are deducted from share
premium (net of any related income tax benefit) to the
extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to
the equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE:BEHBE@)

POLICIES (continued)
3.20 BIEFIRE LR IZHIE S 457

3.20 Retirement benefit costs and short-term employee
benefits

R RAE R R A

(a) Retirement benefit costs (a)

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. Payments to the defined contribution
plan are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
Hong Kong employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions after payment of the fixed
contribution. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries to the
maximum mandatory contributions as required by
the MPF Scheme and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. Liabilities
and assets may be recognised if underpayment
or prepayment has occurred and are included
in current liabilities or current assets as they are
normally of a short term nature. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries operate
in Singapore and Japan is required to participate
in the defined contribution plans regulated
and managed by the local government. The
contributions to the defined contribution plans are
charged to the consolidated income statement in
period to which the contributions relate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Retirement benefit costs and short-term employee
benefits (continued)

(b) Short-term employee benefits
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liabilities for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

3.21 Share-based employee compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted after
7 November 2002 and had not vested at 1 April 2005
is recognised in the financial statements. The Group
operates equity-settled share-based compensation plans
for remuneration of its employees and directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the share options awarded. Their values are appraised
at the grant date and exclude the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is ultimately recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
credit to share option reserve. If vesting periods or other
vesting conditions apply, the expense is recognised over
the vesting period, based on the best available estimate
of the number of share options expected to vest. Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised,
if there is any indication that the number of share
options expected to vest differs from previous estimates.
No adjustment to expense recognised in prior periods
is made if fewer share options ultimately are exercised
than originally vested.

Upon exercise of share options, the proceeds received
net of any directly attributable transaction costs up to
the nominal value of the shares issued are reallocated
to share capital with any excess being recorded as share
premium.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Share-based employee compensation (continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

3.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account
the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where
the effect is material).

3.23 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by,
or is under common control with, the Group; (ii)
has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

the party is an associate;
the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill
has been allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. More details are given in Note 24.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of the Group’s investment
properties is current prices in an active market for similar
properties. In the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair
value estimates. In making its judgement, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences.

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(i) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms
of any existing leases and other contracts, and (where
possible) from external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of the cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant and/or prolonged. In making this judgement, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the price of the
specific investment are taken into account. The Group also
takes into account other factors, such as industry and sector
performance and financial information regarding the issuer/
investee.

Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to property
but also to other assets used in production or supply of goods
or services.

Some properties comprise of a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that
is held for use for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under finance
lease), the Group accounts for these portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted
for as an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use for administrative purposes. Judgement is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
total invoiced value of goods supplied and income from
provision of services. Revenue recognised during the year is

as follows:

Continuing operations

Financial interest and service income
Dividend income

Other interest income

Rental income

Income from hotel operations

Discontinued operation
Sale of air tickets and tours

Total revenue

SEGMENT INFORMATION

BFRECER®%
RS S RIS WA
S HA

H AR BUHA

HelA

BIEEBBA

BRILRE K
HERELIRTTE

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and
the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
reportable segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of the other reportable
segments. Details of the reportable segments are summarised

as follows:

Financing operations

provide financing to individuals

and acquiring services for

members

Securities trading and -
investment

Treasury investment -
operations
Property investment  — letting properties

Hotel operations

trading of securities

asset management and cash

hotel operations in Japan
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the travel related operations, this segment was
discontinued during the year ended 31 March 2009. Further
details of discontinued operation under the travel related
operations reportable segment are set out in Note 10.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with
effect from 1 April 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard
that requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker for
the purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. In contrast, the predecessor Standard
(HKAS 14, Segment Reporting) required an entity to identify
two sets of segments (business and geographical) using a
risks and returns approach. In the past, the Group’s primary
reporting format was business segments. The application of
HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s
reportable segments as compared with primary reportable
segments determined in accordance with HKAS 14. Nor has
the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed the basis of measurement
of segment profit or loss.

The chief operating decision maker considers the business
from both product and geographic perspective. From a
product perspective, the chief operating decision maker
assesses the performance of (i) financing operations (i)
securities trading and investment (iii) treasury investment (iv)
property investment and (v) hotel operations. In addition, the
chief operating decision maker further evaluated the result on
a geographical basis (Hong Kong, North America, Singapore
and Japan).

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

An analysis of the Group'’s revenue, contribution to the results
from operations for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009
and certain assets,

regarding reportable segments are as follows:

Segment revenue and results

For the year ended 31 March 2010

Revenue
- External sales
- Inter-segment sales

Total
Segment results

Unallocated corporate revenue
Unallocated corporate expenses
Finance costs
Unallocated share of results

of associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Segment assets
Unallocated associates
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabiities
Unallocated liabilties

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure
Unallocated capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure

Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments

Fair value gain on financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss
Gain on disposal of financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss
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6. DEERE)
BHE_ZZFR_TBENF=A=+—
HIEFE - AEEWE  L2FEFRNU
liabilities and expenditure information REARESNDEE ETAE - AFER
X DM T
a2 R A
BE-—Z-ZF=A=+—HLEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
- BALE
FESERK Exn
Securities Travel
Financng tradingand ~ Treasury  Property Hotel related
operations investment investment investment  operations Elimination  Sub-total  operations Total
#5588 i
HEXH kg HERE  MERE  EEER Hi Nt BERE At
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén Tén TR TR Tén TiEn TR TR Tén
1,206 1,006 14,735 15,023 45,043 - 71013 - 71,013
- - 8,659 435 - (9,094) - - -
1,206 1,006 23394 15,458 45083 (9,094) 77,013 - 1701
(2,744) 35811 14,735 20421 (4,220 - 247853 - 247853
24,605 - 24,605
(43,457) - (43,457)
(4431) - (4.431)
(2,047) - (2,047)
222,523 - 222,523
(31,549 - (31,549)
190,974 - 190,974
1431 137,579 6,255 742,736 47358 - 935,359 - 935,359
9,110 - 9,110
194,354 - 194,354
1138823 - 1138813
(247) (35) (9628) (287,879 (14,921) - (313,031 - (313031)
(53113 - (53,113)
(366,144) - (366,144)
- - - 158952 549 - 159,501 - 159,501
264 - 264
159,765 - 159,765
(615) - (388) (1,619 (1,884) - (4,506) - (4,506)
. - - 7 - - (47 - (47
- 15,193 - - - - 15,193 - 15,193
- 21,552 - - - - 21,552 - 21,552
(266) - - - - - (266) - (266)

Impairment loss on loan receivables WS HEEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B %R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BE—ZT—T&E=A=+—AIEE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DHER &)
Segment revenue and results (continued) Vo VeV ESTE
For the year ended 31 March 2009 BE_ZRNF=A=t—-HLEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
. Bl
FEEEER BeEk
Securities Travel
financing  trading and Treasury Property Hotel related
operations  investment investment investment  operations  Elimination Sub-total operations Total
Coowmm o
BEEK RRE  BERE  WERE BEER 4 U il S 25
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tén T Tk T Tén T T Thn
Revenue ey
- External sales -HMEE 8,533 8,613 3735 7259 65,259 - 93399 1,018819 1,112,218
- Inter-segment sales -AHEHE - - 40211 1,032 - (41,43) - - -
Total @ 8,533 8,013 43946 8,291 65,259 (41,243) 93399 1018819 1112218
Segment results NPxE (7,785) (28,089) 3,735 (2,176) (3,225 - (37,540) (13,809) (51,349)
Unallocated corporate revenue %i‘ NGl 15,193 29 15,222
Unallocated corporate expenses ARRFRR (83930 - (83,930)
Finance costs (5,726) (1,162) (6,388)
Unallocated share of results of ﬁ“ DS
associates NG (10,595) - (10,599)
Gain on disposal of subsidlaries ~ HEMBRAZ WA - 30,320 30,320
Unallocated impaimentlosson & FHE—FEEAF
interest in an associate ESVAERR (3,600) - (3,600)
(Loss) profit before income tax BEERE (SRR (126,198) 15,378 (110,820)
Income tax expenses FERTE (208) (559) (767)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(BE)ER (126,406) 14819 (111,587)
Segment assets AHE E 5,783 115,062 5700 279,945 48,689 - 455,179 - 455,179
Unallocated associates ﬁ“ CHERT 8,306 - 8,306
Unallocated assets £¥5 @E EE 114,587 - 114,587
Total assets BERGE 578,072 - 578,072
Segment liabilties HPEE (1,136) - (17,637) (53,660) (17,708) - (90,141) - (30,141)
Unallocated liabilities KFAEEE (60,196) - (60,196)
Total liabilties BELE (150,337) - (150,337)
Capital expenditure BAEY - - - 3,192 109 - 3301 2,25 5,557
Unallocated capital expenditure K FAEEARFR 381 - 381
Total capital expenditure ERRL g 3,682 2,25 5938
Depreciation il (958) - (516) (1483) (2,730) - (5,687) (2,350) (8,037)
Amortisation of prepaid lease ERGET N 4]
payments - - - (655) - - (655) - (655)
Fair value loss on financial assets ~ RATEF B
atfairvalue through profitorloss~ $B1&ZE 7 ATEEE - R - - - - s - 05
Loss on disposal of financial assets ~ HERAT R ABHZ
atfairvalue through profitorloss ~ $EtEZ 7 7 - (970) - - - - (970) - (970)
Impairment loss on loan receivables  FEUTE =Tk E S8 (163) - - - - - (163) - (163)
Impairment s on HHEHEREY
avallable-for-sale financial assets ~ JERE - (8,140) - - - - (8,140) - (8,140)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in four (2009: four) main
geographical areas. The following table provides an analysis
of the Group’s revenue by geographical market, irrespective
of the origin of the goods and services.

Hong Kong i
North America JEEM
Singapore gk
Japan B

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets and capital expenditure, analysed by the geographical
areas in which the assets are located.

Segment assets

Hong Kong )
North America JEEM
Singapore gk
Japan B

B %R R M

HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=1—HULFE

6.

DEER (&)
HEEF

AEEXRBERENTE(ZTTNE
PafE) il - TREHRAREIZBETS
DEZWEAN - M RERERSEZ
[REEM

2009
“ZTNE
Continuing ~ Discontinued
operations operation Total

St BRI
BEXE  HEXH @5t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET

21,748 - 21,748
4,293 - 4,293
2,098 497,953 500,051

65,260 520,866 586,126

93399 1018819 1,112,218

AT R MEEREERENMSIRERE

FREsR e Z 54T °
PEEE
2009
—ZTNE
Continuing  Discontinued
operations operation Total
W BRI
Rexl  HEXK b

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAL TAT

354,926 - 354,926
62,068 - 62,068
88,298 - 88,298
72,780 - 72,780

578,072 - 578,072
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Bf & $§ & M &
BE-FT-TFE=A=+HLFE

For the year ended 31 March 2010

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DHERE)
Capital expenditure BB
2009
ZZTNE
Continuing  Discontinued
operations operation Total
158 BEIE
Xl LEER a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FHT FHT
Hong Kong BE 6 - 6
North America SIES - - -
Singapore s 3,508 - 3,508
Japan =N 168 2,256 2,424
3,682 2,256 5938
Information about major customers BEBTEEFZEH

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the aggregate amount
of revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total revenue.

7. FINANCE COSTS

Continuing operations
Interest charges on financial liabilities at
amortised cost:
— Bank loans and overdrafts wholly
repayable within five years
— Bank loans not wholly repayable
within five years
— Convertible debentures (Note 32)
— Other loans

Discontinued operation
Interest charges on financial liabilities
at amortised cost:
— Bank loans and overdrafts wholly
repayable within five years

Total finance costs

30%A N ©

7. ®ERAK

FRESERK
REER AR SRR R
Z BRI :
—ARAFRNEHEEZ
RITEREX
—HARAFANEHEER
ZIRITER
— AR E 7 (E32)
—HER

BRI RS
LB BRZ B E
ZHBHX
—ARAFREHEREZ
RITERES

B AR AN 4B

BE-F-BF=A=T—ALFE &
S5 0 LA B M R SR M

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
T TT

2,178

2,039
1,508

5,726

1,162

6,888



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

B %R R M

HE-F-BF=A=+—ALFE

8. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. KRFIBHANGRA (E58)
Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Total
BESEXK BRAIEEEE #ct
2009 2009 2009
ZEENE “ZENE “ETNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL TR THT
Profit (loss) before income tax is arrived B FTETI AT EFI(E5E)
at after charging (crediting): BARBRGIAATEIE -
Operating lease charges on land THRETEERE
and buildings 53 3,503 10,575 14,078
Depreciation E 5,687 2,350 8,037
Amortisation of prepaid lease FATBREZ EREE
payments (included in FR B
administrative expenses) 655 - 655
Impairment loss on RN EeREE  REER
available-for-sale financial assets 8,140 - 8,140
Impairment loss on loan receivables  ENEF 7 FEEE 163 - 163
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5/ UtzUE 7 Fi BB - - -
Impairment loss on other receivables — EftfENFUE 2 AEEE 16,353 55 16,408
Impairment loss on interest in R-RE=E AR R
an associate LREER 3,600 - 3,600
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - B R&
plant and equipment i - - -
Auditor's remuneration 7 tileA
- current year ~AEE 600 - 600
~ under-provision for previous year -BEFERETR 515 - 515
1115 - 1115
Staff costs including directors’ EENA(BEESHE)
emoluments (Note 14) (BE14) 53,098 47933 101,031
Exchange (gain) loss, net B2 (e BEFE 6,211 13 6,224
Rental income from investment REMERSPARZ L
properties less outgoings of 1,376,000 T(ZZENE
HK$1,376,000 (2009: HK$1,801,000) 1,801,000 7T) (8.944) - (8,944)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Continuing operations HEREER
Current tax ZHAR IR

- Hong Kong —&k

— Overseas — s
Deferred tax (Note 33) RIERIA(MIFE33)
Discontinued operation BRIEREEL
Current tax AREAREIE

— Overseas — 8N

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax rate
from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

B %R R M

HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=1—HULFE

9. FifEBixiH

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
Tt

1,832
315
(1,939)

208

559

767

EA_??/\ﬁ/\H ‘f’/\Ei %;/%_L/fm
BR-EENFRAKHER - BAEF
B ERI75%FHRE165% BT
TN/ ZETNFIBEFERER - A
It - M E R 2 BANS T R AT ER
FHHEM16.5%:TE -

E%ﬂ SB TR PO S SRR RIS
BB ER 2 BT R -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The income tax expenses can be reconciled to the profit (loss)
from continuing and discontinued operations before income
tax per the consolidated income statement as follows:

B %R R M

HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=1—HULFE

9. FiBBiXH )
FifSfis B HER A WEREPRREFERE
IR P RE TS 2 BRETS B AT R A (B518) 3
BRonR -

2009
—ETNEF
HK$'000
FAET
Profit (loss) before income tax BRATE AR T (E18)
— Continuing operations —FHERE T (126,198)
- Discontinued operation — B AR IE A TS 15,378
(110,820)
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax REBENEHNE16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) —EEAF 1 165%)5TE 2
I8 (18,285)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR 2 B2 23,560
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBIMA Z B2 (13,191)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERARSARIEEE Y
not recognised M2 26,271
Utilisation of tax losses previously B RER 2 IHIARE
not recognised (167)
Overprovision in respect of prior year BATERERE -
Other temporary differences not HihAERE =R
recognised 56
Tax effect of share of losses of associates D {EE# =N Rl E1E 2 T & 1,748
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FEE fth alAfE [ & iE 2
operating in other jurisdictions MERRIMERNR & (19,225)
Income tax expenses FR{SHisZ 767

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2009, resulting from the
disposal of the subsidiaries which carried majority of the
Group's travel related operation business, the Group ceased
operation of its major travel related operation in order to focus
the Group’s resources in its remaining businesses. The profit
for the year ended 31 March 2009 from the discontinued
operation is analysed as follows:

Profit for the year from discontinued
operation il

REFDRIRERG 2

10. CRIHEEEF

RBE_ZTNF=RA=+—RHILFE -
G AREE AR IR AR XS 2B
RAIBHHE © Bt ARESRILEE
REBDIREAREET - WEEPEREZ
AEBMEBER BE_TTENF=A
=+ BULEFEDRIEREER ZEHN D
o

2009
—EENF
HK$'000
FHBT

14,819
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Bf & $§ & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2010

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The result of travel related operation business which have
been included in the consolidated income statement was as

11.

follows:

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other operating income
Administrative expenses

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expenses

Profit for the year from discontinued

operation

Cash flows from discontinued

operation

Net cash flows used in operating activities
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash flows from financing
activities

Net increase in cash flows

PROFIT (LOSS) FORTHE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO THE OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$191,005,000 (2009:
loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$111,587,000), a loss of approximately
HK$65,884,000(2009: loss of approximately HK$83,268,000)
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the

Company.

HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=1—HULFE

Yz
SHERAR

EF

Hit 2B A
TS
HEWMBRR Lz K

R

BR P 1S B0 B4 7
PrRSHS th

REFDRIREERZ

F

ERIEREXBRERE

REXBARRSREFR
KREGRBFABRSREFH
BMELBZREREFH

REMERINFHE

=
oNe)

10. BRILEEEK &)

BRER
LU

Weas iR 2 IR 2 5%

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
Tt

1,018,819
(954,228)

64,591
6,554
(84,925)
30,320

16,540
(1,162)

15,378
(559)

14,819

(8,860)
(2,168)

22,886

11,858

"MAXAREEAEBRBEFEFRAER
(E518)
KRB HEARGEFRES BB
191,005,000 L (=TT NF : KRR
BATERFREEL111,587,0000870) 2
o BE4)65,884,000/8 T 2 BB (ZE
T H4F - F5184983,268,00078 L) B FE A
R BHRETRIE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

12. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE FOR PROFIT
(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNER OF THE
COMPANY DURING THE YEAR

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$191,005,000 (2009: loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$111,587,000) and on the weighted average number of
2,215,439,000 (2009: 1,822,029,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$191,005,000 (2009: loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$111,587,000) and on the weighted average number
of 2,222,382,000 (2009: 1,832,763,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share

B %R R M

HE_ZT-ZTF=A=1t—HILFE

12. FREDTHERARMGERR (B
B z8RAEN(EE)

KEFARCHRILELER

FIFEARB R TIE A QN RES AEEER
S A1#7191,005,0008 L ( — T AF K
NEVEA AR FAEIEL)111,587,000
BL) R FANE BITERE 2 NETF
) $02,215,439,000 K ( Z T ZE N F
1,822,029,0000% )&+ -

FRESERR TR AR RHEA AEIEFEA
@ F49191,005,000/8 70 ( —EZENEF + A
NAVEB ANELFEANEIEL111,587,000
BT)RFRNCEITEREBR 2 NETF
) $02,222,382,000  ( Z T Z N F :
1,832,763,0000% )51 & -

BRERREERN (ER) TR T 8iE

is based on the following data: FTE
2009
ZETNF
HK$'000
FAT
Profit (loss) for the year attributable AARVES AE(SF R T
to owners of the Company, (E18) - AU EE/RER
used in the basic and diluted earnings ~ REERF|(E1E)
(loss) per share calculation (111,587)
Number of shares BEOEE
2009
—ETNF
‘000
Fix
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ stEEMREAREF(EE) 2
shares for the purpose of the basic IR INRE S £
earnings (loss) per share 1,822,029
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BrEEEERR T2
shares:
Share options R A HE 1,228
Warrants RMHE T 9,506
Weighted average number of ordinary st EEREERF(EIB) 2
shares for the purpose of diluted TR AR HNRE 19 E
earnings (loss) per share 1,832,763
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

12. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE FOR PROFIT
(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNER OF THE
COMPANY DURING THE YEAR (continued)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share from continuing operations attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

Profit (loss) for the year attributable
to owners of the Company,
used in the basic and diluted earnings
(loss) per share calculation
Less: Profit for the year from
discontinued operation S Al

(B1R) - AR

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009 has stated as above.

From discontinued operation

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 March 2009 for the discontinued operation is
based on the profit for the year from discontinued operation
of approximately HK$14,819,000 and on the weighted
average number of ordinary shares stated as above.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s options or warrants
for the year ended 31 March 2009 because the exercise
price of those options or warrants is higher than the average
market price.

H&’%‘iﬁ% T?fL

—HIFE

12. FRAERTERABMEGRH (E

B zBREBR(HR) @

PIN/N TT?E%)\FEEPEQ SEREEB T
IR EAR R EEE RN (ER) DR T8
=

ARBHEA NEEFERET
HEREN
KEER M (E1R)

o AFEERIERERSZ

2010 2009

—$-%F -z

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FH

191,005 (111,587)

= 14,819

191,005 (126,406)
HE-T-FER-FENF=A=1—

B L 2 E@nE 8 E R L3
5l) o

KECAHRIAZEER
HE-_ZZAF=-A=+—HILFEX
BERIEREEBcEREAREER
FDZRERIEEEEF 2 FERAL
14,819 oooﬁajm&ix}ﬁm IR 2 it
FHEE

“hﬂxﬁETﬁEf‘JHTIﬁﬁ’“Z}S AR=

THRFE=ZA=t— BB
E’éﬁ%ﬁﬁ CRARZEB RSB EE
ZITEERRFHEHE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION)

14.

Short term employment benefits
- Basic salaries
- Housing allowance

Share options granted to directors
and employees

Pension (refund) costs - defined
contribution plans

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

13. BERAAX (BEESHM)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration of each director of the Company for the
years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009, disclosed pursuant to
the Group is analysed as follow:

For the year ended 31 March 2010 EZ-Z—Z&

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Heng Fai

Mr. Chan Tong Wan

Mr. Chan Tung Moe (Note i)
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow

Mrs. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann (Note i)

Non-executive director
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo

Mr. Wong Tat Keung (Note i)

Ms. Chian Yat Ping, vy (Note iij)

Continuing operations  Discontinued operation Total
FESSEK BRILEEER b
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ZZ2-ZF -“TTNF ZZ-ZTF _TTNF ZEB-BF _TTNAF
HK$'000  HK$'000 | HKS'000  HK$'000 | HKS'000  HK$'000
TR T T T TR THT
SV
-E55¢ 34,056 43,494 - 41,627 34,056 85,121
-FEZH 4,031 5,326 - 4,872 4,031 10,198
BYEZREEL
BE 303 3,097 - - 303 3,097
BNERIGRE) KA
—ER 2 (392) 1,181 - 1434 (392) 2,615
37,998 53,098 - 47,933 37,998 101,031
14. EEFHM
BE_Z—ZFL - TTNF=—A=1+—
HIEFE REBEAEBEFREE I ARAS
BEEHMOTLT -
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to defined
and benefits contribution
Fees in kind* plans Total
e 2l HEEHR
He REWEAN* SEHX Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHEL FHT FHL
ZR=t—-HLEFE
HITES
BRiEME A - 5,495 29 5,524
BREE S E - 1,575 97 1,672
BRAR S (i) - 211 25 236
MEBZLT - 2,214 140 2,354
BRI B 2t (A7) - 457 35 492
FHTES
BEMEE 90 - - 90
BAFHITES
TEREE 90 - - 90
Da Roza Joao Pauloft 4 68 - - 68
HER LA (i) 44 - - a4
B —F L (fatii) 123 - - 123
415 9,952 326 10,693
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 14. EEFHMN (&)
Notes: Kt -
i) Resigned on 23 October 2009 N RoEEAEFETA-+=HET
ii)  Appointed on 7 December 2009 i RIZETZNFT-_ALBHEZE
i) Resigned on 7 December 2009 iy RZEZENF+—_AtHBT
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to defined
and benefits contribution
Fees in kind* plans Total
¥ =M HTEEMER
e REWER* FEZHER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
For the year ended 31 March 2009 HE_ZTHhF
“RA=1+—RHIt%FE
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chan Heng Fai PRIEME L& - 2,770 23 2,793
Mr. Chan Tong Wan BREELE - 3,350 97 3,447
Mr. Chan Tung Moe BRI S - 1,221 15 1,236
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow REBZ+ - 6,847 127 6,974
Mrs. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann PRSI E 2+ - 864 65 929
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BRI 118 - - 118
Independent non-executive BAkHTES
directors
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter TEkE 118 - - 118
Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Paulost 4 88 - - 88
Ms. Chian Yat Ping, Ivy BE—Frt 267 - - 267
591 15,052 327 15,970

* This includes the amount calculated under HKFRS 2 “Share-
based payment transaction” that is attributable to the
directors.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration in respect of the years
ended 31 March 2010 and 2009.

During the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

* BEREBEERBMBMELEE2RARD
RERZNRIAEESREZFTA -

BE_ Z-—ZFNR _TTNAF=_A=1+—
BIEFE  MESEREXRERETM
Bl 2 ZHE -

HE_Z-—ZFR-_ZTTHNF=-A=1+—
HIEFE « AEE IR E SR B
SIEAMBAEBE SN B AR E B R 52E)
SREERRAS(E o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

15. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2009: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in Note
14 above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2009: one)
highest paid non-director employees during the two years
ended 31 March 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

B %R R M

HE_ZT-ZTF=A=1t—HILFE

15.

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind* &4 - 284 R EWEF*

Contributions to defined contribution TERREIAGTEIHE

plans

The emoluments of the remaining two (2009: one) highest
paid individual fell within the following band:

Emolument band 4 &5 [E
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

* This includes the amount calculated under HKFRS 2 “Share-
based payment transaction”.

During the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009, no
emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

16. DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company does not recommend
the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March
2010 (2009: Nil).

Z%1,000,000/8 7T
1,000,001/ 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T

16.

EREBRAEME

BERBHAL
AEBRARSHFALTER=ZR(ZFF
NEF: HR)ARBES - AMEFER
BRI EXHIFE14AR 2T Z DA - BE—
T-EER_FETAF=A=1—HILM
EEE BN TESGRE(ZETNE
—R)REFFEFEEZMEMT

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FHBT
1,445

12

1,457

BIma(—TTNF | —B)RSFAL
ZHMENFTINEE

Number of individuals

AB

* BREREEBUEREERIFE2R ARD
NRZS IFHEZF0R

HE—ZZFR-_ZTNF=_A=1+—
HIEFE  AfEBERNAGRSTAL
SAHE A e RN AL E s N E A%
E 2 BB S B B o

IR =
ARBEFRATERABE_T—FTF
ZA=Z+T-RALEFERNEE(ZZETA
FoE)
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Group

At 1 April 2008

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Carrying amounts

Year ended 31 March 2009

Opening carrying amounts
Additions

Transfer from investment properties

(Note 19)
Transfer to investment properties
(Note 19)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 43)
Depreciation
Exchange realignment

Closing carrying amounts

At 31 March 2009

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

Carrying amounts

Year ended 31 March 2010

Opening carrying amounts

Additions

Transfer to investment properties
(Note 19)

Written off

Disposals

Depreciation

Exchange realignment

Closing carrying amounts

At 31 March 2010

Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Carrying amounts

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

R-ZE\FMA—H
AR
R ERRE

R

HE-ZTHE
ZA=+—HLEFE
FEEE

~E

BEREKENE
(Biz£19)

BESLENE
(H1:£19)
HERBAR(AE43)

e

P 5 %

U
R-BEAF=A=1—A
A

ZHHTE R

R

BE_Z-EF
ZA=1t-HLEFE

FUREE

NE

BRENENE
(Hyz2£19)

itkis

HE

e

[ 5 R

FRREE

Rt ERRE

R-2-FF=A=t+-H
2N

REE

B %R R M

BE_Z—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

17. Y% - BERRE

A EE
Furniture,
Land and Leasehold fixtures and

buildings Improvements motor vehicles Total

+ ER BA%E )
RETF EL kA= @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THT TEr THT
49,148 14,621 34,271 98,040
(3,700) (2,955) (24,113) (30,768)
45,448 11,666 10,158 67,272
45,448 11,666 10,158 67,272
- 3,431 2,507 5,938

9,915 - - 9,915
(2,480) - - (2,480)
(124) (5,564) (4,887) (10,575)
(1,139) (2,036) (4,862) (8,037)
(183) (326) 259 (250)
51,437 7171 3,175 61,783
54,463 12,045 25,326 91,834
(3,026) (4,874) (22,151) (30,051)
51,437 7171 3,175 61,783
51,437 7171 3,175 61,783
2,523 2,157 511 5,191
(10,042) - - (10,042)
- (32) (145) (177)

- 217) (36) (253)
(1,050) (2,244) (1,212) (4,506)
(249) 476 (142) 85
42,619 7,31 2,151 52,081
46,797 14,024 6,989 67,810
(4,178) (6,713) (4,838) (15,729)
42,619 7,31 2,151 52,081




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The carrying amounts of land and buildings held by the Group

are analysed as follows:

In Hong Kong, held under RE&EEHFHZ
long-term leases REAFEAY

In Hong Kong, held under RE&EBHHZ
medium-term leases R ERFR Y

In Japan, freehold RBARZ KA ZERE

Asat 31 March 2010, certain of the Group’s land and buildings
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$42,619,000
(2009: HK$51,437,000) has been pledged to secure the

Group's borrowings (Note 31).

B %R R M

HE-F-TE=A=t-ALFE

17. Y13 - BEN&RE @)

AREERE 2 LR BF 2 REED A

T
Land and buildings
T RiEF
Group Company
AEE AAF
2009
—TThF

HK$'000
TAT

10,043
41,394

51,437

N-TB-—FTF=A=+—0  "&EHEE
T (B %742,619,0008 7L ( Z T L F
51,437,000/ 70 ) 2 & T Lih RIEFE K
RS AEE 2 EE(HIFE31) ©

—ETNF
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 HE-— T FEFE=-A=+—QIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% - BERREB@®

Xpress Group Limited

84

(continued)

Company

AT

Furniture,
fixtures and

motor vehicles

B RwE
kA=
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZN\FMA—H
Cost BXAR 4,237
Accumulated depreciation REHinE (2,135)
Carrying amounts AREE 2,102
Year ended 31 March 2009 HEZZTZNF=-A=+—RHALFE
Opening carrying amounts FHEREE 2,102
Additions NE 6
Depreciation e (516)
Closing carrying amounts FREREE 1,592
At 31 March 2009 R-ZEZENF=A=1+—H
Cost PR R 4,243
Accumulated depreciation 2EHTE (2,651)
Carrying amounts FREE 1,592
Year ended 31 March 2010 BE-_Z—ZF=A=+—HLEFE
Opening carrying amounts FHAREE 1,592
Additions = 19
Disposals ek (30)
Depreciation e (388)
Closing carrying amounts FRIREE 1,193
At 31 March 2010 R-B-EF=A=1—H
Cost DN 3,920
Accumulated depreciation ZEtinE (2,727)
Carrying amounts AREE 1,193



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Group
The Group's prepaid lease payments and their carrying
amounts are analysed as follows:

B %R R M

HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=1—HULFE

18. {SHERKE

rEEH
REEZBNBEEFIEREEEES TN
T

2009

—EENEF

HK$'000

FHTT

Medium-term leases held in Hong Kong A& A# A 2 P EATHY 19,692

Long-term leases held in Hong Kong RBEBUREA 2 KEIAL -

19,692

Opening carrying amounts FHERMEE 28,699

Additions = -

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments B 7E S i IE# 54 (655)

Transfer to investment properties (Note 19) B =15 W2 (131 19) (7,500)

Exchange realignment PE 5 EE (852)

Closing carrying amounts FIREREE 19,692
Prepaid lease payments TENEERIE

- Non-current portion —ERENE 19,162

— Current portion (Note) —mEnEs s (Aat) 530

19,692

Note: The current portion of prepaid lease payments included
in trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments
(Note 28).

As at 31 March 2010, the Group's prepaid lease payments of
HK$23,384,000 (2009: HK$19,692,000) have been pledged
to secure the Group's borrowings (Note 31).

Hiat - BRHEERBZ RBBIEFAE SR
HAab W RIE - RS RIEMARE (W
28)A ©

W-ZB—ZE=F=+—H  KEEHEN
FAE F7823,384,0008 L (ZEZNEF ¢

19,692,000/ 7T ) E RIS AR E 2
BEFIEE31) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

B %R R M

HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=1—HULFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REWH
All of the Group’s property interests held under operating REEMA LS ERER A I5E ARIE
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are SHIEERNIEER S 2 EREREARTF
measured at fair value model and are classified and accounted BERAFE - WHABRIREMENRE -
for as investment properties.
Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the statements EFBRRETR 2] 2 EEEZE A il
of financial position can be summarised as follows: RN
Group
rEEHE
2009
—EThEF
HK$’000
FHTT
Fair value AFE
Opening carrying amounts FHREE 268,490
Additions NE -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 42) U iE — M B A R (A75F42) -
Transfer from prepaid lease payments B e RMEERE
(Note 18) (Hfit18) 7,500
Revaluation surplus upon transfer from BV - BEMEEERE
property, plant and equipment to WEME 2 EHRHK
investment properties 12,767
Transfer from property, EE B - BB REE
plant and equipment (Note 17) (Hiz£17) 2,480
Transfer to property, EE Y - BB RRE
plant and equipment (Note 17) (Hiz£17) (9,915)
Fair value gain (loss) on revaluation of EHIREMHE 2 AT ENE
investment properties, net (B18) 58 (12,277)
Exchange realignment P& 5 % (18,539)
Closing carrying amounts FIRERMEE 250,506
The Group's interests in investment properties are held under REERE NNEAFHRTE 2 REYE
the following lease terms: s
2009
—ZETNEF
HK$'000
FHT
Long-term leases in Hong Kong FEB 7 REREY -
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong B2 R ERFLY 37,328
Long-term leases outside Hong Kong BBEIN KEFFEA 141,480
Medium-term leases outside Hong Kong & LAS 2 A1 EAFH 49 -
Freehold outside Hong Kong BAEAINZ KA FERE 71,698
250,506




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value ATE

Opening carrying amounts FHREE

Fair value loss on revaluation of BHREMEZRA
investment property &8

Closing carrying amounts FRIREE

The Company's interests in investment properties are held
under the following lease term:

Medium-term leases in Hong Kong BEZHHELY

The investment properties of the Group and the Company
were revalued asat 31 March 2010 by Messrs. Avista Valuation
Advisory Limited, an independent firm of professional valuer
who hold recognised and relevant professional qualification
and has recent experience in the location and category of the
investment properties being valued, on an open market basis
based on recent market transactions.

The investment properties in Hong Kong, Canada, United
States and Singapore of the Group and the Company
were revalued as at 31 March 2009 by Messrs. Malcolm
& Associates Limited; whereas the investment property
situated in Japan was reassessed as at 31 March 2009 by
Messrs. Hokkaido Kantei Co. Ltd. Both Messrs. Malcolm &
Associates Limited and Messrs. Hokkaido Kantei Co. Ltd.
hold recognised and relevant professional qualification and
have recent experience in the location and category of the
investment properties being valued, on an open market basis
based on recent market transactions.

Rental income earned by the Group from its investment
properties, which are leased out under operating leases,
amounted to approximately HK$15,023,000 (2009:
HK$7,259,000).

® &M
FE=A=t

19. REWE (4#)
Company

b /N
2010 2009
—E-2F ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET Fit
1,050 1,200

FE

= (150)
1,050 1,050

ARBRE TN FRRFHAZIREME

%
2010 2009
—E2-2F —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
1,050 1,050

REBERARRZHENFER T —FTF
=A=+—H Eﬂéﬁiiﬁr%féfﬁﬁiﬁékﬁ
HERERDFIR AR ISEEL KT
MBS R HETER - ZIEETH AR
NREXERER  XEWNIHRANERS
RIMEREYEET R EEYE 2 GE

AEBEARRABRES  MEX - EH
KM 28 EMER_STTNF=H
=+ — H M Malcolm & Associates Limited
E%ﬁi&ﬁ%@ MARBARZIEEDE
K ZZEZTNF = A =+ — B A Hokkaido
Kantel Co. Ltd. = #7 57 & ° Malcolm &
Associates Limited & Hokkaido Kantei Co.
Ld 5 EHBAREREER - WHAS
R EREMEMTM R EEMELEITE
B HEE - BIRAFRAMISEET K
TEATIS R S HETTE -

AEBREEEMEMBRD 2 HS UK
A#) 515,023,000 L (ZEZ NF -
7,259,000/ 7L) * MA BIREWE TR
EHRAEH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Bf & $§ & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BE_E-ZF=-"RA=1+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19.

No income or direct operating expenses were recognised
during the year for investment properties that was unlet
during the year (2009: HK$ Nil).

As at 31 March 2010, certain of the Group's investment
properties with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$731,376,000 (2009: HK$159,480,000) have been
pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings (Note 31).

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE  20.
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES

BRENE &)

FRRE A 25 AR 2 A MERR
AR ERE RS (ZBTAF
) -

N-ZZE—TFZA=+—H KEEHE
H{E#)731,376,000 8 L ( ZEZF NF ¢
159,480,000/ 7T) 2 A TIREMHEE T
o UERAEB 2 EE (HIRE31) -

PHEBAR 2R WEQRAX
R ERMEARREA)

Company b N
2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FHT
Investments at cost B - LKA
Unlisted shares JE ETRR D 73,194
Less : Provision for impairment L ORE R (50,428)
22,766
Amounts due from subsidiaries within e N IEENEIDNEN
one year
Interest bearing at 2% per annum BENERE(ZETNF ¢
(2009:10%) 10E)FHE 450,195
Non-interest bearing w8 349,319
799,514
Less : Provision for impairment W B E RS (398,284)
401,230
Amounts due to subsidiaries within —FAERNBARZA
one year (155,785)

88




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2010 are

as follows:
Place/country of
incorporation/ Particulars of
operation and issued share capital/
Name kind of legal entity registered capital
EMEL EEE BRITRE/
L BRRLEERER AMERER
China Credit Singapore Pte Ltd  Singapore, limited liability $$13,417,282
company 13,417, 28257 I T
H - BRAR
China Xpress Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability $$5,670,002
company 5,670,003 MK 7T
H - BRAR
eBanker USA Com. Inc. United States of America, Common stock
limited liability US$115,487
company One Series
ENEARE  BRAR A preferred stock
Li@R115,487%
—RAZRFIBER
Expats Residences Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability $$25,002
company 25,002%7 I T
Hgt - BRAF
Global Growth Management, Inc.  Canada, limited liability US$1,000
company 1,000%7T
NER - FRAF
Heng Fung Capital Company Hong Kong, limited HK$2
Limited liability company 28T
ERREERAR B BRAR
Heng Fung Capital (Canada) Inc. ~ Canada, limited liability C$1
company TMgAT
NER - FRAF
Heng Fung Underwriter Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited HK$2
liability company 2T
B BRAR
Ichi Ni San Enterprises Company ~ Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000
Limited liability company 10,000%7T

BE ARAT

B %R R M

E-T-TF=-A=THLFE

20 RMB LR 2 fEHE HWEATXR
O (ERHBRRFRIEA) ()

NRZE—ZTE=A=1+—HZFEWEA
RIERHNT

Proportion of ownership interest  Principal activities

Esr- ddedl] TEEHR
Group's
effective  Held by the Held by
interest ~ Company subsidiaries

FEE  mARE  HMEAR

ERED 5B 5B

% % %

100 100 - Investment holding
REZR

98.8 - 98.8 Investment holding
REZR

81.8 - 81.8 Financial investment
SRIE

100 - 100 Property investment
NERE

100 - 100 Property investment
NERE

100 100 - Securities investment
EFRE

100 100 - Property investment
NERE

100 100 - Securities trading
EFEE

100 100 - Property holding
NERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2010

B %R R M

E-T-TF=-A=THLFE

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE  20. AKIB AT 2% HMEBATX
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) ;O ER B A TFIE) (&)

Xpress Group Limited

90

Place/country of
incorporation/
operation and

Particulars of

issued share capital/

Name kind of legal entity registered capital Proportion of ownership interest  Principal activities
SR EEHH BRITRE/
£ BRREEERER TMERER FrE LAl TEEH
Group's
effective  Held by the Held by
interest ~ Company subsidiaries
r5E HALXE HNEAR
ERER ®H BE
% % %
Japan Xpress Hospitality Limited ~ Japan, limited liability JPY495,000,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
company 495,000,000A RARR
BA - BRAF
Kabushiki Kaisha Aizuya Japan, limited liability JPY30,000,000 100 - 100 Hotel holding
company 30,000,000 & BIEER
BA - BRAF
Keng Fong Foreign Investment Co. United States of America, US$250,000 100 - 100 Property investment
Ltd limited liability 250,000 7T and development
company MERERER
EMBERE  BRAR
Sapporo Holdings Inc. Japan, limited liability JPY3,000,000 100 - 100 Hotel holding
company 3,000,000H TEE R
B BRAF
Singapore Service Residence Pte  Singapore, limited liability $$1,250,000 100 - 100 Property holding
Ltd company 1,250,000%7 i3 T MERE
Hngst - BRAT
SingXpress Investment Pte Ltd Singapore, limited liability $$800,000 98.8 - 100 Investment holding
company 800,000%7 I TT REER
g - BRAR
SingXpress International Pte Ltd ~ Singapore, limited liability $$2 100 - 100 Property holding
company 28T MERA
g BRAR
Wai Kin Investment Company Hong Kong, limited HK$600,000 100 100 - Investment holding
Limited liability company 600,000/ 7T REER
BREXBRNAA EE BRAF
Xpress Credit Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$ 1,260,000 100 - 100 Investment holding
liability company 1,260,000/ 7T REER
EE BRAF
Xpress Finance Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$133,866,230 72 - 72 Financing services
liability company 133,866,230/8 7L SRR

B% ARAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM (TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

There were twelve (2009: twenty-one) subsidiaries of the
Company, which were incorporated in Hong Kong, were
inactive and have completed the procedure of deregistration
during the year.

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES

FEEMRAD - IAANE

Unlisted shares, at cost

Share of net assets DIHEEFE
Goodwill on acquisition IWWEREE 2B
Less: impairment loss B OREEE
Amounts due from L /NCIDNE
associates within one year  (—FRF|H])

Amounts due to associates A& /KB4 N B FIE
within one year

As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, amounts due from (to)
associates are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

B %R R M

HE-T-TE=A=t-ALFE

200 RMB DR 2z HEARR

KRB ARFIE) (&)

RN EERREBREAREARFER
EEARBRAREEALDFEEZAR
FIME AR - EERR - MEIIEMKE
RAERBEHREBNITE

ARABKET—_M(ZFTNF : =+ —
) EEBTMARZANMBERRRER
% WERFRTEREHNIEF -

21 REBEE DR 2 EHE BELRAXR
= =]
R(ERBEARRA)

Group Company
REE 2N
2009 2009
—TENF —TENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT
- 5,385
7,354 -
4,552 -
11,906 5,385
(3,600) (5,385)
8,306 -
7,648 3,809
1,387 587

NP PER-FEAF=R=1—
B B AR RBHE R RRE) Ty

BEH - RENBEERER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the principal associates at 31 March 2010 are

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

21. R DTl 2R HEQATR
;RS NTIFE) (&)

R-B-BF=A=+-RAZTEHPEL

as follows: AIERHAT
Particulars of Country of Percentage of
Name issued shares held incorporation interest held
=L FFERTROZER AfMRIER FSEEESL
SingXpress Ltd. (“SingXpress”) Ordinary share of no par value Singapore 33.3%
BEEEZERK FT AN
RSI International System Inc. (“RSI") Ordinary share of no par value Canada 29.8%
BEEEZERK IEN

SingXpress is listed in Singapore, the market value of the
listed shares held by the Group as at 31 March 2010 is
approximately HK$15,073,000 (2009: HK$6,635,000).

RSl is listed in Canada, the market value of the listed shares
held by the Group as at 31 March 2010 is approximately
HK$1,402,000 (2009: HK$846,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group increased
its equity interest in SingXpress from approximately 31.9% to
33.3% (2009: from approximately 30.9% to 31.9%,).

The summarised financial information of the Group’s
associates extracted from their annual reports as at 31
December are as follows:

SingXpressIFT I £ - AREEAFHHE
TR R=_E—ZEF=ZA=+—82
M{E %) /415,073,000 0 ( ZET NF ¢
6,635,000/ 7T) °

RSIMINEZER ET - REBAFE LW
PDR-_E—BFE=A=+—B2mENE
1,402,000/ 7T (ZZEZE N F : 846,000/
JL) °

HE-_ZT-ZFE=A=+—HIFE K
5 E 7 SingXpress 2 & A5 1 z5 B3 £931.9%
WE3Z3%(ZZFZNF - BHAI30.9%135
%£31.9%) °

mixAAREBREARNT_A=1t—H
ZERZMBEMEENT -

2010 2009

—EB-ZF —TThEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Assets BE 44,509 46,700

Liabilities afE (24,410) (23,367)

Revenues a5 21,338 308,044
Loss for the year ended 31 December HE+_-_A=+—HIFE

Z &8 (6,387) (21,955)

The associates of the Group listed above, in the opinion of
the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

FRIBEERRIBREAKEARFE
EKENBEAARERBREDFEEZAE
B2 NE - EFRA - W EMmBE
RAERHHERIBBRITR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

21.

22.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS DUE
FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES (continued)

SingXpress and RSI have a financial year end date on 31
December, which is not conterminous with the Group. For
the purpose of applying the equity method of accounting,
the financial statements of SingXpress and RSI for the year
ended 31 December 2009 (2009: 31 December 2008) have
been used as the Group considers that it is impracticable
for SingXpress and RSI to prepare a separate set of financial
statements as of 31 March. Appropriate adjustments
have been made accordingly for the effects of significant
transactions between 31 December 2009 and 31 March
2010. (2009: between 31 December 2008 and 31 March
2009).

LONG TERM DEPOSIT

On 28 August 2006 and 8 January 2007, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a vendor
to acquire investment properties in Singapore at a cash
consideration of Singapore dollars (“S$”) 13,282,000
(equivalent to HK$65,748,000) and S$270,000 (equivalent
to HK$1,389,000) respectively. As at 31 March 2009, the
Group had paid approximately $$2,770,000 (equivalent
to HK$14,095,000) as a deposit for this acquisition. This
deposit has been used to settle part of the cost of investment
properties during the year ended 31 March 2010.

HE—T 3

21.

22.

% W & M
TF=A=

-EI
+

—HIFE

Fﬁﬂﬂjzﬁé/%ﬁﬂﬁm
(R NTRE) (7)

SingXpress XRSIZ I FE#ER BT =
A=+—8  BiRAEE - ARAE
E R A& SingXpress XRSIB TR EH = =
A=+— E!ZW?@E?E]TTTG 5

SingXpress & RSI &, JE%ZE_ ThE
TZA=ZFT—R(ZZEZAF : ZTZN
FTZA=+—RH) L FEZ2MBHRKRKE

AEREs /£ ]IEE%:_7 ZNFE+-A
=t—HE_ZT-ZEF=-A=1+—HHH
—ETNEF: :TT)\¢+ A=1—

BE-ZTAF=-A=1t—H)METE
ARBZZEFLBEERE -

REEZS

RZBEERNFNAZFTNBERZZEE L
F—ANR AEBEHR-FESFIVLE
EpmABETME 2 REME  Be
RABH Bl 513,282,000 hnik T (HHE R
65,748,000 7T ) }2.270,000% i3k 7t (48
E1501,389,000/87L) - RZZEZNF= A
—+—H  ANEEEZ42,770,000%
hnssk 7T (AR E 714,095,000 7T) » 1EAU
Bt #HE_T-TFZA=+—HIL
FE BHERSCHEEEREME I
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Group

Non-current

Equity securities
Listed outside Hong Kong, at fair value
Unlisted, at cost

Debt securities, at cost (Note)
Unlisted in Hong Kong

Total

Market value of listed equity securities

Note: The debt securities represent club membership which is stated
at cost less accumulated impairment loss as they do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and fair value cannot

be reliably measured.

B %R R M

HE-T-TE=A=t-ALFE

23 AItHESREE

REE

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FET

IERED

RENCES
REBLUINET - B RTFE 10,724
JEET - RAAE 29
10,753

BRES  IBRANEW 7

REBIELET 1,425
wast 12,178
EmRAEASEZTE 10,724

Mat - BEFRESREARRET S LY EHIGHRE
REAFERAANGEHABZEME
& TR REHREREFIRR
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For the year ended 31 March 2010

B %R R M

HE-F-FF=A=+—AILFR

24. GOODWILL 24. BE

Group

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the main changes
in the carrying amounts of goodwill result from release of
goodwill due to the disposal of subsidiaries. The net carrying
amounts of goodwill can be analysed as follows:

AEH
RE-TENESA=+—AILEE B
BREA EERHREELEHEAR
MEREE - HELREFEAFOT

2009
—EThEF
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April RUA—H

Gross carrying amounts REEE 28,620
Accumulated impairment REHRE -
Net carrying amounts FREDFE 28,620
Net carrying amounts at 1 April RUA—HZERmFE 28,620
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 43) HEMHBA R (A iF43) (18,048)
Exchange realignment B 5, 8 B (28)
Net carrying amounts at 31 March RZA=+—HZEEFE 10,544

At 31 March R=B=+—H
Gross carrying amounts FRE&E 10,544
Accumulated impairment ZETRE -
Net carrying amounts FREDFE 10,544

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to the following
cash generating unit in the annual impairment test:

Hotel operations — in Japan

BIEZER— AR

EEERENAT  BEZREED DR
EATREELEN

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FHBT

10,544
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

24. GOODWILL (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed
the recoverable amount of goodwill, and determined that
no impairment associated with cash generating unit. The
recoverable amounts for the cash generating unit given above
were determined based on value-in-use calculations, covering
a detailed five (2009: three) years budget plan, followed by
an extrapolation of expected cash flows at the growth rates
stated below. The growth rates reflect the long-term average
growth rates for the respective business operations:

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are:

Growth rates R
Discount rates AL3R &

The Group’s management’s key assumptions for the Group
have been determined based on past performance and its
expectations for the market development. The weighted
average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts
included in industry reports. The discount rates used are pre-
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

Apart from the considerations described in determining the
value-in-use of the cash generating unit above, the Group's
management is not currently aware of any other probable
changes that would necessitate changes in its key estimates.

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

24. BEE)

RBEREERE - AREFZHEZA
Yol 58 - BEEIMEER S ELE BN
R RE - BB eESBEMZ AIkES
BREREENE  BEFANLF(Z
ZTNF - ZF)FAEFE - HERRUT
BEZEHEHRER - BRERRIAH
EBNRETIGERR

SAEREBESEMAZ T2|R

Hotel operations

BIEER
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENEF
5% 0%
5%-10% 5%

AEEZ T RREBEEEELBER
BREMzTSERBEMET - AZ
PR R R AR RERE TR —
B o PTRZ REIRE TR N R B
X AR ERR o

MEE DR EL Bz FRERML
ZRARI  AEEEEERE I A
BEMEMAEFELASE  UBAEHE
ZEBMEFTEENENRE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Bf & $§ & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2010

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES
Group

HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=1—HULFE

25. EIRER
KEH

2009
—EENEF
HK$'000
FHTT
Term loans — secured EHER - BHER 6,561
Mortgage loans — secured RIBER - AHER 4,791
Installment loans — unsecured D HIE R — EIKH 7,856
Net carrying amount BREFE 19,208
Less: Provisions A (11,961)
7,247
Less: Amount due within one year B FIARBEEZ
included under current assets —FNEIEIFRIA (6,511)
Amount due after one year included TIAIERBEEZ
under non-current assets —F &I EFIE 736
The mortgage loans bear interest at 0.5% over prime interest RBER T RBEBREEZNEMOSE(Z
rates in Hong Kong (2009: 0.5% over prime interest rates in TTNF  BEKEENEIN0SE)TF
Hong Kong) per annum and are repayable by installments §+§’ CWERZE——FRIDHER - %
up to year 2011. The loans are secured by mortgages over ERTAEBRAEL 2 WERIBIER
properties placed by the borrowers. The mortgage loans are ﬁ HRERARRER - BUIRIBE KA
repayable on demand due to the default on repayment by BERKEE -

the borrowers.

The installment loans bear interest ranging from 20% to 40% DHERTIRFENENF20EZ40E (=
per annum (2009: 17% to 40% per annum). The repayment ZTNF  FRENFI1I7EZA0E) 5
terms of the loans are negotiated on an individual basis. B o ZEEREFRRIRERIELEZRT -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

25. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

The maturity profile of the loan receivables at the end of the
reporting period, which is analysed by the remaining periods
to their contractual maturity dates, is as follows:

Notes:

(@  The aging analysis of loan receivables that are not impaired is

B %R R M

HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=1—HULFE

25. EIWER(#)

EREFN RS HMERB 2B BB RIE
EEXREA 2 THEEL 290
T

Bet -

(@) MAMEZEKERREDITAT

as follows:

2009
—TENF
HK$'000
FHET
On demand B 614
Within one year —FR 5,897

More than one year but not exceeding BiR—FE D RmF
two years 177
More than two years R E 559
7,247

(b) The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of loan receivables approximate to their fair values.

(©)  The Group has provided fully for all loan receivables that
are determined not recoverable. Based on past experience,
the management believed that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of the remaining balances as there had
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
were considered fully recoverable. The movement in the
provision of loan receivables is as follows:

(o) AAREFERREWREFREERLLT
LR

(@ AEEREEE/TTREZMAEEREESE

REBELRE - EEERBAELRA

7% EEE’\FEE-E%EE%EEf‘JEKi@U

EARZERIRE - BB BB IEH
/ﬁﬂﬁﬁéﬁ o W ES B EE EJJZZDT-

2009

ZEENF

HK$'000

FAT

At 1 April HmA—A 11,798

Written off sy _
Impairment loss and allowances charged RERE W R RRR 2 R EEE

to the consolidated income statement &L 163

At 31 March R=A=+—8H 11,961




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Bf & $§ & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HE-—E-THE-A=-+—HIEE

26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, BANKBALANCES 26. B HRITER - RITEHRER

AND CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:

Cash at banks and in hand  $R77I4& L FHEIES
Short-term bank deposits %8 EASRTTER

Less: Pledged bank deposits 5 : BRI TIER

Bank balances and cash BTEARORRKR PSR 1T
as stated in the statements &8 RIHE
of financial position

Bank overdraft RITEX

Cash and cash equivalents  42&IEERB R
as stated in the RekBeEE
consolidated statement THH
of cash flows

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and one month
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time
deposits at fixed rates ranging from 0.05% to 3.29% (2009:
0.40% to 6.90%) per annum. The carrying amounts of the
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash and bank
overdraft approximate to their fair values.

Included in bank balances of the Group is HK$31,109,000
(2009: HK$17,790,000) of bank balances denominated in US
dollars (“USD") placed with banks in Hong Kong, US and
Singapore, HK$67,443,000 (2009: HK$1,213,000) of bank
balances denominated in Singapore dollars (“S$") placed
with banks in Hong Kong and Singapore, HK$3,390,000
(2009: HK$2,089,000) of bank balances denominated in
Japanese Yen (“Yen") placed with banks in Hong Kong and
Japan.

EURBRITEX
BeMReFEBRBEATRE:
Group Company
REHE /NS
2009 2009
e e
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR
44,423 6,517
16,378 10,007
60,801 16,524
(3,973) -
56,828 16,524
56,828 16,524

TR BT Z B2 RIEST BIRTTFERFR X
BREUFBAE - RIASEEREF K
SYMmME  RBTHERA—B R —E
BHIBRTE » o BIBRES B B e 817
FIZNF0.05EE329FE (T NEFE
0.40EZE6.90E) 2 B EFFEFFHE 2 F|
B o BEMIRITEN  |RITEB RIS
MIRITIES 2 REERF S A FEES -

FARNEBRRTET ARITHE S
31,109,000 & T ( = & T N, F -
17,790,000/ 70)  #EL([ET])FHAE
WERRES -« FB RN ZRIT
$R1T451767,443,000/8 L (Z T N4 -
1,213,000 70 ) + & 37 o0 oo (1 %7 hng
TC D EHEW RS RN 2 $R1T
$R1T7457%3,390,000/8 L ( Z T T N4F ¢
2,089,000 7t) » I BE([HIE ) sHEW
BFRAEBERARZIRIT -
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES

AND CASH AND BANK OVERDRAFT (continued)
As at 31 March 2010, pledged deposits placed as securities

for the borrowings.

As at 31 March 2009, the pledged deposits represented the
time deposits placed as securities for the credit card business
transactions. The pledged deposits are classified as current
assets when the liabilities being secured will mature within
twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents mainly include the following foreign

currency:

usb
S$

Yen

27. INVENTORIES
Group

26.

B %R R M

BE_T-THF=-A=1—HLFE

CEARITER  RITARRE
EUARBITER (&)
R-ZZT—TF=A=+—R BEFFEX
BB RER BTN -

RZZZENF=A=+—0 BERFEX
REFEAREBZXBIEREBERRTFRZ
EMER - e B A EHRREBES
RAR+T—EARIE - MEEFFRD
BIERBEE -

RBeMREeFEBRTEBEATING

Group Company
KEE ¥ /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—EFE —TTHNF ZFB-FFE —TTHHF
‘000 000 ‘000 ‘000
T SRVl Fix Tz
E 2,164 2,311 1,474 1,289
N T 3,188 229 62 13
S| 40,815 26,680 10,976 394
27. BE
REE

The amounts represent food and beverage and other
consumables for hotel operations.

100
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables =) & e]
Less: Allowance B REREE

for doubtful debts

Other receivables, deposits £ fth EUFRIE -

and prepayments Ze RIENHKIE
Prepaid lease payments TE A ER0E
(Note 18) (Hfit18)

The directors of the Company considered that the fair values
of trade and other receivables are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because these amounts have
short maturity period on their inception.

The average credit terms granted by the Group to its trade
customers are as follows:

Hotel operations
BIEER
Financing operations

BB R

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period is as follow:

0-60 days 0&60H
61-90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90HAE

B %R R M

HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=1—HULFE

28 ESREMERFTIR BEEREA
(NES

Group Company
REH ARFE
2009 2009
—Z2TNF —ZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR
17,543 -
(10,000) -
7,543 -
14,353 1,050
530 -
22,426 1,050

ARREZRR/E S NEMBRTAE LR
FEEEREETEEAZE  ARFE
BREERANEERIHA -

AEEGETHESEP 2 FHREERN
T

60 days
60H
30 days
30H

B 5 Rl OB R s R R A 2 R 5
T :

Group
&M

2009
—EENF
HK$’000
FHT
2,431

7
5,105

7,543

101

—2-BEEH

Annual Report 2010



Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

102

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Group has recognised a loss of approximately HK$2 1,000
for the impairment of its trade receivables during the year
ended 31 March 2010. (2009: HK$ Nil).

The aging analysis of trade receivables that are past due but
are not considered impaired as at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

61-90 days
Over 90 days

61Z290H
90HLAE

Trade receivables that are not yet past due relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group has
hold collaterals over these balances.

The Group has provided fully for all receivables that are
determined not recoverable. Based on past experience,
the management believed that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of the remaining balances as there
had not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were considered fully recoverable.

B %R R M

BE_Z—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

28 ESREMERFTIR  EERR

NRRE )

REFREZ T ZTF=A=1+—H
HFEEHRAEZFEVRBERESED
21,0008t (ZEZENF  T8T) °

R EMEERE 2 aHERKRSER
BB ZREFRZREDITIT

Group

REHE
2010 2009
—E2-2F —EENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THETT
89 44
5,434 5,435
5,523 5,479

DRBHZE S RYEGIREBNAE I
BRAERRCHEZER  ERMETFRE
ZEGRBFARBN S REAEEAR
IEERSRZBURP - RBAELS -
EEERETTE AU FERBIERER
B REEERRAEAEZE AR/EHR
R 28R - AEEREZFHREME
o

REBEREEE R TAIMEZ B REE
REBEHLEE - BEERBBELRR
5 HREBERZEEERIEELT
MEAEFHMEREAR SR 2BURE - 8
BLEEHRERRE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt & $§ & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2010

HE-F-TE=A=t-ALFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 28. EZ R EMEWRE - € kHE

29.

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

A )

2009

—EENEF

HK$'000

FHTT

At 1 April RIMA—H 23,377

Bad debts written off AR H (11,826)

Impairment loss charged (reversed) to B4R & Wa BRRR (B )

the consolidated income statement ZREEE (1,551)

At 31 March R=A=+—H 10,000

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s trade PREHELERD - AEEZE H RN

receivables were individually determined to be impaired. e ERIEE ARE o &5k EFEB R

The individually impaired receivables related to customers BRI HNEE - EFHERE - Bt - A

that were in financial difficulties. Consequently, specific RREREDERR ASEFEZRSHE
impairment provision was recognised. The Group has hold FREVIR IR o

collaterals over these balances.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 29. BAFEFABRZEREE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Group

Listed securities held for trading
Equity securities — Hong Kong
Equity securities — outside Hong Kong

Market value of listed securities
Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss
— Equity-linked notes

Total

REE

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FiBT

BIEEE 2 FhES
BAFES BB 13,750
R AR TE 5 — BB LA 3,260
AR zTE 17,010

BEAFESABEZ

SREE

—RAEMIE 85,875
5T 102,885
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT

FAIR  VALUE

%R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

290. MAFEFFABRZCEMEE (@)

104

Company b N
2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Listed securities held for trading HEBE Z FHES
Equity securities — Hong Kong RAE S — B 92,992 13,662
Market value of listed securities hESEzTE 92,992 13,662
Financial assets designated at fair value EEBEATERA
through profit or loss BRsemEE
— Equity-linked notes — AR A ik 3,761 39,191
Total st 96,753 52,853

The listed securities are held for trading purpose. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented
within the section on operating activities as part of changes
in working capital in the consolidated statement of cash
flows. As at 31 March 2010, an amount of approximately
HK$34,527,000 is secured for providing banking facilities to
the Group.

Equity-linked notes are designated as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition as
it contains embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract to be designed as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. Terms of the equity-linked
notes are as follows:

Principal amount

&

HK$3,761,000
3,761,000 7T

The equity-linked notes are subject to mandatory redemption
clauses at maturity dates depending on the market prices of
a Hong Kong listed securities underlying the equity-linked
notes. The equity-linked notes will be redeemed based on
the original principal amounts. The equity-linked notes are
interest bearing.

ITHEEHEEERR - RATE AR
B2 EMEERKE RS D BINERE R
BERAZEEELEE N _T—ZTF=
B=+—H " 434,527,000/ T2 ZED
RALEEERIBITEE T LA o

HRRARBRERERANITETA
BEBGTEREIGREFBRASHA
HIEERBRATESABGEZEREE
HARA AR IEN Y SR IRIEE R
RFEFABGZEREE - RAHBERE
BZFHIMT

Maturity
A

14 April 2010
—Z—TFPA+IMA

PR AR IRAE TR H A 2RI EE
sk - AR TR AHBRIERE R
BLEMEZTEME ° RAHBREGR
BREAZEREE - RAHBRERT S

ES R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

29. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

At maturity date, if the equity-linked notes, depending on
the market prices of the underlying equity securities and
certain predetermined price levels, are still outstanding, the
equity-linked notes will be redeemed by the issuer at the
principal amounts in cash or shares which may be lower than
the principal amounts.

The equity-linked notes are measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Their fair values are determined
based on the valuation provided by the counterparty
financial institutions at the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, a fair value change on equity-linked notes of
approximately HK$121,000 (2009: HK$3,000) is recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the years ended 31
March 2010 and 31 March 2009.

30.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

%R R M

HE-F-BF=A=+—ALFE
29. RAVEARBZEHEE @)

REFA - WA B RE (1R TR
REHE N E TIRE ZEBRKFME)
RARTTEE » IRAEMIRIRG BT ARA
SEUARSIWMNER - BOZRE R
MIEENAEHE -

AR E N RS BEAR B A FE
2 o ERAFEDIBER S8 FIMIE#E
RERBRESBLERBZEENEE - B
Itk #9121,0008 L (ZFEZFNF : 3,000
BIT) 2 RN IE 2 AT EZEE N E
ECE-TE=-A=1+—AR-ZZTTHE
A=+ BULEFEZGEARGERPE

=7
e ©

3&%%&Eﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ%&@ﬁ§

Group Company
rEHE ¥ YN
2009 2009
ZETNF ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trade payables B SN FIA 27,191 -
Other payables and Hib e 5IE &
accrued expenses [EETER 11,323 3,000
38,514 3,000

The Group was granted by its suppliers credit periods ranging
from 30 to 60 days (2009: 30 to 60 days). An aging analysis
of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting period,

AEBZHERE FAEE 2 REBN T
30260H (ZZFEZ N4F : 30260H) - &
SEMRERREREERARERER

based on the invoice date, is as follows: HA VBRSO AT T
Group Company
REE AT
2009 2009
—EThE —FThE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0-60 days 0&60H 27,191 -
61-90 days 61290H - -
Over 90 days 90H M E - -
27,191 -

105

—2-BEEH

Annual Report 2010



HEEEARDT

Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

31. BORROWINGS

Non-current FERED
Bank borrowings IRITEE
Mortgage loans RIBER
Current TRED
Bank borrowings RITEE
Mortgage loans RIBEN
Total borrowings BEE
Secured HHEA
Unsecured R
Total borrowings BEE

At the end of the reporting period, the above borrowings
were repayable as follows:

On demand or within one year RE i —F R
More than one year but not  #BiB—S{E T BIBMF
exceeding two years

More than two years but not ~ FBEMFETBERLF
exceeding five years
More than five years BBRF

B RBEET—FR
B 508

Less: Amount due within
one year shown under
current liabilities

FRBAGE T —FiR
BIH 2508

Amount due after one year
shown under
non-current liabilities

106

%R R M

HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=1—HULFE

31. B&
Group Company
AEE YN

2009 2009
e T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
21,567 _

41,375

62,942

5,986
5,132

11,118

74,060

74,060

74,060

WIS EIIARR - AR T
HAfEE -
Group Company
AEE AR
2009 2009
—EEhE —EENE
HK$/000 HK$'000
Fin FAT

11,118
10,866

30,338
21,738

74,060

(11,118)

62,942




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

31. BORROWINGS (continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the borrowings are as follows:

Group

Bank borrowings

RITEE

Mortgage loans

BBER

Company

Bank borrowings

RITEE

%R R M

E-T-BF=A=t—ALFE

31. BE @)

B E 2 BE AR GEE(MESRE TN
R -

REM
2009
—TTNF
Fixed Rate Floating Rate
ER EE
3.08% 0 3.20% N/A
3.08E%3.20E TEA
5.29% t06.51% Prime rate in Singapore +0.5%,

5.292%6.51/F HIBOR (1 month) +1%, 0.75%
over the Commercial Financing
Rate or 0.25% above prevailing
Enterprise Financing Rate
IR S EENZ 0.5 -
BERTRERS(—EA)
e - AEEEREM0.752
KEHLERENEM0.25E

ZA/NS
2009
—TTNF
Fixed Rate Floating Rate
TR EE
N/A N/A

TER TEA

107

—ZEFH

-z

Annual Report 2010



BRDA

RHEEE

Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

31. BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$ BT
CAD hn#s
S$ N T
Yen =
usD E
Swiss Franc b mmprN

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate to their
fair value.

32. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES

Group

The convertible debentures were issued at discount by a
subsidiary of the Company, eBanker USA. Com Inc. on 26
May 1998, bearing interest at a rate of 10% per annum,
which is payable half-yearly on each 1 February and 1 August,
with a nominal value of US$6,690,000 (HK$52,091,000)
and was matured on 1 August 2008. These debentures are
convertible into shares of common stock of the subsidiary at a
conversion price of US$5 per ordinary share of the subsidiary.
During the year ended 31 March 2009, the debentures have
been matured and fully redeemed.

The convertible debentures recognised in the statement of
financial position are calculated as follows:

Fair value of convertible debentures REY [ BRAES
at beginning of the year ZAYE

Equity component (Note) e ah o (Mfat)
BB
MEZH(#E7)
EAFLE

&

Liability component
Interest expense (Note 7)
Interest paid
Redemption

Current liability component at 31 March

108

%R R M

HE_ZT-ZTF=-A=1—HULFE

31.

Group
REE

32.

R=ZA=t—HZRBAERD

B8 @)
{8 2 BRE A LA T 5 & R EEAT -

Company

FRF
2009
—EThEF
HK$'000
FHET

2009
“ETNF
HK$'000
THT

18,633

6,482
21,392
27,553

AR ES

REE

A # M {5 55 B A A 7] KT B A &) eBanker
USA. Com Inc. R— RN NFERHA =+
BIRITEEEIT IREBXRABI10EETE -
FEER_A-—HBRENA—BRE—X
= 1 {B /46,690,000 3 7T (52,091,000 78
) WER-ZZZENFENA—BEH -
BHAIRZNB AR SR ERRSETZ
sEIREER OB AR 2 LB - RE
E_EEAFE=A=1+—HLEERN " &
AR B R EE D -

R F RN R EERR < AIRAR & 25 Jhat B an
T

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
T

45,358

45,358
1,508
(2,257)
(44,609)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

32. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES (continued)

33.

Group (continued)
Note:

In accordance with HKAS 32, convertible debentures are required
to split between liability and equity components, on a retrospective
basis.

As the interest rate of 10% per annum of the convertible debentures
approximated the market interest rate at inception of the convertible
debentures for a similar financial instrument without the conversion
option, no equity component of convertible debentures was
recognised accordingly.

Interest expense on the convertible debentures is calculated using
the effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate
of 14% to the liability component.

%R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

32. ARG @)

EEE (F)
Bt -

RBBRGFERIEI2R - IMRESFARE
PEEMI D HABLRERED -

B AT IR AR B 25 2 S M| 3R 10 [ B2 — A IF B T 40
MRz o Ul e B T AR T AR AR (E A0
ZTSMEEE - SRR A ARG 2

Ly
SR
map7l °©

AmRESF NS IR ERD
TERAVAE 2 BIRFRGE -

REBRM

DEFERRED TAXATION 33. IEEBIE
Group REE
The movements on the major deferred tax liabilities recognised UTHASERR.EFZRERIBAGZ
by the Group are as follows: 28
Fair value
gainon Other
revaluation taxable
of investment  Revaluation temporary
properties  of properties  differences Total
EMRENE HibERS
ZATEKE Bt BREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FET
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZ\EFMA—H 22,288 1,705 496 24,489
Exchange realignment 0 i, 38 (1,595) - - (1,595)
Credited to consolidated income SAGREKER(A1E9)
statement (Note 9) (1,939) - - (1,939)
At 31 March 2009 RZZEZAF=A=1—H 18,754 1,705 496 20,955
Exchange realignment i i, % 2,632 - - 2,632
Arising from acquisition Ry —RmB AR mES
of a subsidiary 6,421 - - 6,421
Charged (credited) to consolidated MEGrA)EFE KRR Z9)
income statement (Note 9) 32,511 - (219) 32,292
At 31 March 2010 R-8-BF=A=1-H 60,318 1,705 277 62,300

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of HK$217,334,000 (2009:
HK$239,626,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of these tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit stream. The whole amount of estimated unused
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RREEBEERA - AEEB G AEA
THIEE18217,334,0008 T(Z 2 N4 -
239,626,000/ 7T) « FARAREETRA B &R
FIZOR - S EEFE T A B MR IR A TE
BE - [Hrt A AN EBER S ETE
[RHEAAEEE o
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

33. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Company
The movements on the deferred tax liabilities recognised by
the Company are as follows:

%, R T?fL

HE_Z-ZF=-A=1+—HILFE

33. IEEHIE (&)

ZNNS
ARARERZEEHRARE ZZEBWT

Fair value gain
on revaluation
of investment

properties
EMREYEZ
AFEKER
HK$'000
FHBT
At 1 April 2008 =S ?)\imﬂ = 249
Credited to consolidated income statement FAZAEWE (25)
At 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2010 RZZEZNF=—A=+—HK
—E-EF=A=+—H 224
34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34. EEIKH
Group RAEH

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s facilities of approximately
HK$175,562,000 (2009: HK$74,060,000) are secured by:

— itsland and buildings and prepaid lease payments (Notes
17 and 18) with carrying value of HK$66,003,000 (2009:
HK$71,129,000);

— its investment properties (Note 19) with carrying value
of HK$731,376,000 (2009: HK$159,480,000);

— its bank deposits of approximately HK$3,413,000,
whereas as at 31 March 2009, bank deposits of
approximately HK$3,973,000 were pledged as securities
for banking facilities granted to a subsidiary and as
securities for credit card business transactions with
MasterCard Worldwide (Note 26).

110

NR-ZE—ZTEF=A=+—0 *&£EHH
& #7175,562,0008 T ( Z T F AL F :
74,060,000/ 7T ) LA T 51| 75 348

—  BRTEE A66,003,000/8 L (—ET AN
171,129,000 0) 2 L M IEF
AR TERHEERB(WHE17K%18)

—  BRE@E{EA731,376,0008 T (—EE R
F :159,480,000/8 7T ) 2 E W %
(Pft3E19)

— #153,413,0008 T ZRITFER
MR ZEENF=A=+—8 "4
3,973,000 T 2 R 1717 R E B IK
B ERR—HENEB QR RIT
RE 2 IR+ M E A B MasterCard
Worldwidei#1T{E A REBR B2 &
R (FtsE26) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 BE—ZT—T&E=A=+—AIEE
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. JRA
Par value Number of
per share ordinary shares Amount
SREE EEREE 8
HK$ HK$'000
BT THER
Authorised: EERA
At 31 March 2009 and 2010 RIZTNER
“T-TFE=R=1—H 0.01  1,000,000,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid : BRETREERA -
At 1 April 2008 RZZZ\FMA—H 0.01 1,819,089,466 18,191
Exercise of 2009 Warrants subscription ﬁ@L SENFRRIEE
rights (Note (a)) REREMHE) 0.01 33,876 -
Exercise of share options (Note 36) ﬁﬁ%%@%ﬁ@ 0.01 18,000,000 180
At 31 March 2009 RZEENF=A=1—H 0.01 1,837,123,342 18,371
Exercise of 2009 Warrants subscription hﬁ_ SENFRRER
rights (Note (a)) REEE) 0.01 1,430,359 14
Exercise of share options (Note 36) ﬁ@iﬁ%ﬂﬁg( H:236) 0.01 133,376,200 1,334
Open offer (Note ¢) RAREWHC) 0.01 367,424,668 3,674
Issue of consideration shares (Note d) BORERD (Hita) 0.01 301,481,481 3,015
At 31 March 2010 R-E-ZFZA=1—H 0.01 2,640,836,050 26,408
(a) 2009 Warrants (a) —EFNFEREF
Pursuant to a written resolution of the board of BRER=ZZEZNFNA+NA Z§$

SEMRER - ARFHERAR -F
ZOFE+—ARRARIIBEREMZ A
RAEIRRARETHREEE( —F
THERBEE]) - BERZEFRR
BRAETRERMHAIEE—H —F “jl

directors on 16 August 2004, the Company approved a
bonus issue of new warrants (“2009 Warrants”) to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appeared
on the register of members on 5 November 2004 on the
basis of one 2009 Warrant for every ten shares held by

Annual Report 2010

such shareholders. Pursuant to which 162,593,106 units
of 2009 Warrants were issued to the shareholders of the
Company at an initial subscription price of HK$0.09 per
share as a result of the bonus issue of new warrants.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, registered
holders of 2009 Warrants exercised their rights to
subscribe for 1,430,359 (2009: 33,876) ordinary shares

of the Company at HK$0.09 per share.

The subscription period of 2009 Warrants has already
expired on 30 September 2009, the outstanding 2009

Warrants of 100,989,556 units were lapsed.

FRAMERE o UL - AIRREEITHR
BB BIIRT0.098 T 2 MF R
BN R EE1T162,593,1061
ZETNFRIREE -

HE-_Z—ZFTF=-FA=+—HILHF
B ZETNFREREB2ERLF
BAITERE 2R - 12E5820.097%
TURIE1,430,359 (—EZ L4 -
33,876M%) AN A EIE B ©

—EENFREREEZREHD

RZZEZENFRLA=Z+HER

100,989,556 K EITHE 2 —TZ N,
RS FER T AR o
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

2006 Warrants

On 7 August 2006, the Company issued 172,000,000
unlisted warrants at the issue price of HK$0.03 per
warrantto Mr. Chan Heng Fai (“Mr. Chan"), an executive
director of the Company. Each warrant carries the right
to subscribe for one new share of the Company at initial
exercise price of HK$0.16 (after adjustment of open
offer during the year ended 31 March 2010) per new
share, subject to adjustment for, among other things,
subdivision or consolidation of shares, right issues,
extraordinary stock or cash distribution, and other
dilutive events, at any time during a period of 5 years
commencing from the date of issue of the warrants.
Consideration of HK$5.16 million was received in
respect of warrants issued during the year ended 31
March 2007. During the years ended 31 March 2010
and 2009, none of the warrants has been exercised.

Pursuant to the circular dated 4 May 2009, the Company
made an open offer (the “Open Offer”) of 367,424,668
offer shares at a subscription price of HK$0.05 per
offer share on the basis of one offer share for every
five existing shares. The certificate for offer shares was
dispatched on 27 May 2009 and commenced in dealing
on 1 June 2009.

On 8 January 2010, the Group acquired 100% of the
share capital of Expats Residences Pte. Ltd (“Expats”)
together with a loan due to Mr. Chan of approximately
S$4.39 million from the vendor, Mr. Chan at a
consideration of approximately HK$40.7 million.
301,481,481 shares were issued as the consideration at
a price of HK$0.135 per share.

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a)

112

Company

On 9 May 2003, a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme"”) was adopted by the Company. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives and rewards to eligible persons who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for 10
years from that date, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended. Eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme
include any employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries (including executive
and non-executive directors of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants, agents,
advisers, shareholders, customers, partners or business
associates who, in the sole discretion of the board of
directors of the Company, have contributed to the
Company and / or any of its subsidiaries.

| & M
TE=A=t

HE_Z-ZF=-A=1+—HILFE
35. A (&)
(b) ZEENFRREF

(c)

(d)

RIZZEZXRNFNALH » KRAFIRE
D RIHERE0.03B L 2 B ITERAR
RIMITEBREIE LA (PR E ) B
77172,000,00017 3£ = B IEAERE -
HMHR Hﬂé;’iﬁ%%ﬂ@ R MR B
THRAAFEA  BERENLSITE
BRI 16B T(EREE_S
—ZE=ZA=+—HIFERNAQH
BEERAZR) (TAEFABE) KRS
WA - HA% - BRI IRE
DR EEMEEEIR AR REAR
RNEl— B - REE_ZT+F=
A=+—HILFE ' EBTR JM%E
2 UK 1E5,160,0008 7T - REZE —
E-FEN_EFTNF=F=+—H
IEFE - BERREREITE -

RERRR_TTNFAANBZAE
- ARRRESREARRA RN A
ERE-BREERMNEE  UE
PR B 170.058 7T < RREE AR %

%367,424 668h% B & M fn ([ AR 2
g1 fo%zmabﬂ_? ThE
£H*+tE§§’“‘ TR —ZEBZNF

NA—BHEBREE -

RZE—ZFF—ANA  AEEMN
R {8 4940,700,000 5% 7T A & /5 R 4%
4 U B& Expats Residences Pte. Ltd
(fExpatsJ) B A i [R) 45 R BR 5
4 7 B 7 #94,390,000 7 03 IT ©
301,481,481 g & 10 16 B X (B T 2
17 BIRIEE0.1358 T ©

36. BIRRESTE

(a)

*AH
RZZEZ=FRANA - ARRIEHA
FERRERT 2 (T RERERT 8 ) - BERHE
SR EERAUASBEBAREME
J%ﬁz/\ﬁﬂ/\j:%%iiﬁbﬁi%% ° KR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BE—ZT—T&E=A=+—AIEE

36. IBIRAESTEI ()
(@) ZERE(#E)

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@) Company (continued)

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted is such number of shares which, when
aggregated with shares subject to any other share
option scheme(s), must not exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible person in the Share Option Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time and with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company'’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject
to the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$ 1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determined by
the directors, and commences on a specified date and
ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date
of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors of the Company, but may not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the grant, which must
be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal
value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the
share premium account. Options which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from
the register of outstanding options.

RIBRBEES S - ATRER I 2 FE A iE
BNz BN BUE - AR A E A
BEES Rz R BN - &ETE
HBARNFEARESEITRAZ
10% ° AE 1218 A R R &R B A
BRI BRIz B A BB AL
T2 IREE LR - AARRBE R
BEEITRMD1%RR o EE—F
B AL R R 2 B A R
BRASHLER - HAIETT

MARFES TBTRAE - =2
AR R SR 1 55 2 B e A 3% HH R AR
W YBERBARR BB IFNITES
ZEEHE o B - TEEM2{E A
HARS - AR B E B AR R 5 E
VIR TESHIMREZHEAL
BB IB AR RIPMET B B 3%
1TR170.1% N 48 {E %8 455,000,000
TTRBERRARBRORIEFL B ZE
RETETE) 2 BEIHE - BIZBEFIRER
AR EE - FaET -

RERLBREATNEZ AMRE
W ARAEREAR XN EERE
BHRUBT - ROBREZITEHD
MEFET - miETAMEENER
1E = BB O B B ST 104F Sl fE R
ArEERBE Rz RE AL -

BB ZITEEDAARAESE
E NS ERATRIEZ &S
OWARBBRMHRRER L BH (LA
RSB )RR PIEHRERR
WHME : ()VARBIRMNREREZR
A H#IRT A AR 5 B R B P B
BRHRFHRHE : Ri)A Q7
BADTE(E

REBREETTER - AR
BT 2 Rty i A EE S F R MY
A M R EEZ BRITEER
FEAB R ERR o R1TE A HIAT R
St iH < B S B M RTT IR
B AmER -

113

—Z2FEFR

-~

Annual Report 2010



Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@) Company (continued)

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share option in issue under the Share Option Scheme
during the year:

%R R M

E-T-TF=-A=THLFE

36. IBIRAESTEI ()
(@) ZERE(#E)

TEREBEARRFARIEELAES
PREETT 2 N R RIS -

31 March 2010 Number of share options
“E-Z5Zf=t-H EREHE
Outstanding  Adjustments® Cancelled Exercised  Outstanding
Share option at1 during during during at31
type April 2009 the year the year theyear  March 2010
RZBENE R=B-%%
Name or category mA—-H =ZA=t+-H
of participant SEATHASERN  BRESH HATHE  FREE EREH FRfTR WA
(Note 2)
(=)
Directors EE
Mr. Chan Heng Fai BEBLE 2004@) 15,000,000 313,500 - (15313500 -
2004(b) 147,000,000 3,072,300 - (26,186,500)  123,885,800"
2006(2) 120,000,000 2,508,000 - (73,500,000) 49,008,000
Mr. Chan Tong Wan BRaELE 2004(b) 15,000,000 313,500 - - 15,313,500
2006(a) 5,000,000 104,500 - - 5,104,500
2009(b) 18,000,000 376,200 - (18376,200) -
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow BREETT 2004 15,000,000 313,500 - - 15,313,500
2004(b)  35,000,000" 731,500 - - 35,731,500
2009(b) 18,000,000 376,200 - - 18,376,200
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BEETE 20040) 4,500,000 94,050 - - 4,594,050
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter B 2esivid 2004() 3,000,000 62,700 - - 3,062,700
Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao Pauloft 2005 2,000,000 41,800 - - 2,041,800
Ms. Chian Yat Ping, vy BTt 2006(b) 2,000,000 41,800 (2,041,800) - -
Sub-total Nt 399,500,000 8,349,550 (2,041,800) (133,376,200) ~ 272,431,550
Employees and others (Note 1) & R & (47 —)
In aggregate At 2004(b) 22,000,000 455,202 (1,118,392) - 21,336,810
2006(a)  10,000,000¢ 209,000 - - 10,209,000
2007 1,500,000 31,350 - - 1,531,350
Sub-total Nt 33,500,000 695,552 (1,118,392) - 33,077,160
Total Eh 433,000,000 9,045,102 (3,160,192) (133,376,200) 305,508,710
Weighted average exercise B REMIE
prices of share options FHAEE
(HKS) (Brn) 0.1527 0.1495 0.1551 0.1430 0.1523

A Following the issue of the offer shares in May 2009, the
number of and the exercise price of the outstanding
share options were adjusted in accordance with the
requirements of Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules
and the supplementary guidance issued by the Stock
Exchange on 5 September 2005.

Note 1:  During the year ended 31 March 2010, Mr. Chan
Tung Moe and Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann
were resigned as directors and their options were
reclassified from the directors category to other
category.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 E—E—EE=A=+—AIEE
36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 36. BRESE(#)
(a) Company (continued) (@) AL a#E)
31 March 2009 Number of share options
“EENF=A=1-H BREHA
Outstanding Granted Cancelled Exercised  Outstanding
Share option at1 during during during at31
type April 2008 the year the year theyear  March 2009
HoBBNE R=BFNF
Name or category mA—-A =ZR=1-H
of participant SENTHEARR BRESR WA EREH R Enfri WA
(Note2)
(H=)
Directors 2
Mr. Chan Heng Fai RiE’ks 2004(a) 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
2004()  147,000,000° - - - 147,000,000
2006(a) 120,000,000 - - - 120,000,000
2009(a) - 18,000,000 - (18,000,000) -
Mr. Chan Tong Wan FEERE 2004(6) 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
2006(a) 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
2009(b) - 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow BEELT 2004(a) 15,000,000 - - - 15,000,000
2004(0) 35,000,000" - - - 35,000,000°
2009(b) - 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
Ms. Chan Sook Jin, Mary-ann iS5t 2004(b) 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Mr. Chan Tung Moe RERAE 2004(b) 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
2006(a) 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
Mr. Fong Kwok Jen BEgtE 20046) 4,500,000 - - - 4500000
Mr. Wong Dor Luk, Peter 7 St 20046) 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
Mr. Da Roza Joao Paulo Da Roza Joao PauloZt 2005 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Ms. Chian Yat Ping, Ivy B-Tut 2006() 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
Sub-total st 378,500,000 54,000,000 - (18,000,0000 414,500,000
Employees and others EEREM
In aggregate At 2004(0) 13,840,000 - (1,840,000 - 12,000,000
2006(a) 11,000,000¢ - (6,000,000) - 5,000,000¢
2007 7,500,000 - (6,000,000) - 1,500,000
Sub-total it 32,340,000 - (13,840,000) - 18,500,000
Total Ehy 410,840,000 54,000,000 (13,840,000 (18,000,0000 433,000,000

Weighted average exercise ~ HREME

prices of share options THRE
(HKS) (%) 0.1620 0.0692 0.0680 0.2151 0.1527
Note 2: Kl — -

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share
options during the year is HK$0.1430 (2009: HK$0.2151).

FRRTEBRE B2 g HRES
0.1430B (=TT NEF 1 0.215187T) ©
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

116

(@) Company (continued)

HE—ZT—

%R R M

TEZA=t—HILFE

36. BRETEI(w)

@ AZLA )

Details of the share options are as follows:

Share
option type Date of grant
BREER RHAH
2004 (a) 1 November 2004
—ETWFE+—A—H
2004 (b) * 15 November 2004
~PEME+- AR
2005 27 May 2005
“EERFRA-T4H
2006 (a)# 22 May 2006
—EERFRAZTZH
2006 (b) 21 December 2006
“EERF+-A-+—H
2007 ** 18 April 2007
“ETEFMATNH
2009(a) 13 February 2009
—EENF-R+=H
2009(b) 18 February 2009

* %

“ZTAF_A+TN\R

Exercisable period
AT

1 November 2004 to 8 May 2013

—EENF+-A-RE-Z-=F1AN\A

20 November 2004 to 8 May 2013
ZETEF+—AZ+REZS—
28 May 2005 to 8 May 2013
—EERFRATN\REZ—
22 May 2006 to 8 May 2013
—EERFRAtRE_Z—
30 January 2007 to 8 May 2013

“ETHF-RA=tRE-Z-=FRANA

18 April 2007 to 8 May 2013

—ETHFNATN\REZ-=F1ANRB

13 February 2009 to 8 May 2013

—EENF-RAT=HZE=Z-=FhAN\A

18 February 2009 to 8 May 2013

EENF_ATNBEZZ-=F0AN\A

The exercise of these options was subject to the condition
that the audited revenue of the Group on any financial
year during the life of the Share Option Scheme was not
less than HK$1 billion, which is calculated based on the
accounting policies and presentation adopted by the
Group at the date of grant of option and the preparation
of the audited financial statements for the year ended 31

March 2005.

The exercise of these options was subject to the condition
that the audited profit before income tax of the certain
subsidiaries/associates of the Group for the financial year
ended not less than certain prescribed amounts. When it
meets the requirement, the share option will be exercised
in tranches of 20% per annum for each achieve year.

The exercise of these options was according to the

following schedule:

a. 20% of the option shares be exercisable at the

date of acceptance; and

b.  the balance will be exercisable in equal yearly
installments over 4 years with the first installment

commencing 1 January 2006.

BRECFRET
2009 2010
Exercise Exercise
price price
“EZhE CZB-ZF
TEE TEE
HK$0.16  HK$0.1567
0.16/87C  0.1567/87T
HK$0.1616  HK$0.1583
=FRANE 01616/ 0.15838 T
HK$0.15  HK$0.1469
—FRANA 0.15%87T  0.1469% T
HK$0.1566  HK$0.1534
“FRABNB 015667 0.15348 7T
HK$0.1566  HK$0.1534
0.1566/87C  0.1534/87T
HK$0.29  HK$0.2841
02987 0284187
HK$0.068  HK$0.0680
0.0687%7L  0.06807%8 T
HK$0.068  HK$0.0684
0.068787T  0.06847% 7T

* %

T2 S IE R < M S IRt A&
B B A Rt 818 U AR AT B
FEZEBREAETELR0EE
T I Th R AR AR S N B AR IR
ERMRGREE_TENF=H
=t RLEFEZEEZHBRE
B PTER M 2 & 5t BUR M 251 )7 AT
“ o

TR EBRRZMw R RAE
B2ETHWEBLR,BEARRY
BF B 2 B EZ G TS B AR 7
BIMETEELHE - FRRNAAI
HE - BN S EEREFEIN
BF20% D HATE ©

ZE BT IRIR I TR R T -

a.  HA20%EREAIRENE A
T &

b. #HTZBRESKREUFATF

DHRETE - FRITEY
H-ZETRF-HA—RRK -
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36. IBIRAESTEI ()
(@) ZERE(#E)

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@) Company (continued)

The vesting period of other share options is the period
from the date of grant until the commencement of the
exercise period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 248,848,760 (2009: 350,500,000) remaining
exercisable share options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining
exercisable share options were represented to subscribe
for 248,848,760 (2009: 350,500,000) ordinary
shares in the Company at HK$35,417,000 (2009:
HK$52,984,000). The weighted average remaining
contractual life of these outstanding share options is
approximately 3 years (2009: 4 years).

133,376,200 (2009: 18,000,000) share option were
exercised during the year.

The fair values of options granted were determined
using the Black-Scholes valuation model. Significant
inputs into the calculation included a weighted average
share price of HK$0.05 (2009: HK$0.05) and exercise
prices as illustrated above. Furthermore, the calculation
takes into account of no future dividend and a volatility
rate of 95.21% (2009: 95.21%), based on expected
share price. Risk-free interest rate was determined at
1.9% (2009: 1.9%).

The underlying expected volatility was determined
by reference to historical data. No special features
immanent to the options granted were incorporated
into measurement of fair value.

In total, for the year ended 31 March 2010, employee
share-based compensation expenses amounted to
HK$303,000 (2009: HK$3,097,000) has been included
in the consolidated income statement which gave
rise to additional paid-in capital. As at 31 March
2010, the estimated fair value of the option granted
which was included in the employee share-based
compensation reserve, amounted to HK$2,450,000
(2009: HK$4,219,000).

HipBRE 2 B H e hR A
EITEHFGRE B ILHRE -

RS EEERE - AR FIREER
REETEIE BB ARITE 2 B S
B 5248,848,760 (ZEZE N7 :
350,500,0001 ) ° BEIT{EEE T A T
11 2 fEfR#E - B /A LA35,417,0000%
TT(ZEZNF : 52,984,000/ 7C) R
BE KN 5]248,848, 760 (—ZZ N,
% : 350,500,0000% ) ZiBA% - ;ZE
RITEEEBNE 2 INETF BB T AL
RORIF(ZTTNE - 45F) -

FRDTITF133,376,20000 (ZEZh,
£F 1 18,000,00017 ) BEARHE o

P B RS 2 N E T IR R ke
TEEEAET - ZEAFTAZEEE
B eENEFEARE.SEIT(ZE
ZNF 1 0.0587m) R EXATRE U 2
TIfE(E o A - %5 #JTEJr)\EI?éji

mRR B &ﬁwﬂﬁﬂxfﬁ Z/Bzfpaa
95 21%(ZZTNF - 9521%) =

R FIR T EA1.9%( —ZEZAF
1.9%) °

1 2 TR T S R 2 B
7 PRI IR 2 PO H QLA
ARFEZHER -

—IPAN
RAEE

= %Zi_’é TE )E]
=t+—HIEFE Lxﬂxﬁs'zﬁ%ﬁa
2 B ¥ /303,000 (==

N4+ 3,097,000 7T) W\i*/\
WERBEA - AmESBEINEHER -
RZE-—ZTF=F=+—H &AM
BN TIEE 2 MERES 2 TR
BB R 2 (T A T E 42,450,000
BIL(ZZEZNSF :4,219,00087T) °
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& ¥R & ft =%
TF +

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BE-_E-—EE-A=+—HRFE
36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 36. B AERT 8l (@w)
(b) Subsidiary (b) HKIE2 A
eBanker eBanker

In January 1999, the board of directors of eBanker
authorised the eBanker 1999 Incentive and Nonstatutory
Stock Option Plan, with effective from 18 January 1999
through 17 January 2009, unless sooner terminated.
The eBanker’'s board of directors granted to certain
eBanker’s directors, options to purchase 620,000 shares
of eBanker's common stock at US$3.00 per share,
exercisable immediately and for a period of ten years.

The following table presents the activity for options
outstanding as of 31 March 2009:

Directors =

Employees EE

At 1 April 2008 RZEENFHH—
Lapsed during the year FRRK

At 31 March 2009 R-ZZEZENF=A=

There was no movement in share options granted by
eBanker and no share option was exercised by the
grantees for the year ended 31 March 2009. These
options were lapsed during the year ended 31 March
2009.

37. RESERVES 37.

Group

The amount of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, investment revaluation
reserve represents aggregate changes in fair value on
available-for-sale financial assets, while assets revaluation
reserve represents change in carrying amount of owner-
occupied property when it becomes an investment property
that will be carried at fair value.
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R—NANNLF—H > eBanker£E¢g
BAEHETeBanker— N F 2B &
A TE BRI RT B - BRIERRAIAR L
GRR—AANF—A+N\BHEZ=
EENF—A T+ IEEBER -
eBankerZ E @ [A]%& T eBanker® £ 1%
%E%HXEE LA'!’HX3 OO%EZFTD o
& eBanker 620,000/% & @AY © 3%
BEARERT AR TR B B4 o

TREFN-FEAF=A=+—H
R (B 2 54

Number of
share options

BREHE

600,000
20,000

H 620,000
(620,000)

+—8 -

BHE-_ZTTZNF=A=+—HILF
E eBanker#% 11 2 8 B #E 19 SR AL A
""""" HE) > MARANMETEEMNBER
- REBRERNEE—_TTNF=
A=+—BLFEEERK -

e

AEH

AR RIBEEE - AREY HESE
RASH 2RI RENGAERED
o

W_E-—BER_BEAF=A=f—
A RARGEHHETR S RAES
AFESDEE - HAEBLREEE S
R B IR A B30 2 18 M2
ZEEERS -



Company

At 1 April 2008
Exercise of 2009 Warrants

subscription right (Note 35())

Exercise of share options
(Note 36)

Employee share-based
compensation expenses
recognised

Transfer to reserves upon
exercise of share options

Transfer to reserves upon
cancellation of options

Loss for the year

At 31 March 2009 and
1 April 2009

Open offer (Note 35(c))

Exercise of 2009 Warrants
subscription right
(Note 35(a)

Exercise of share options
(Note 35)

Issue of consideration shares
(Note 35(d)

Employee share-based
compensation expenses
recognised

Transfer to reserves upon
exercise of share options

Transfer to reserves upon
cancellation of options

Loss for the year

At 31 March 2010

37. RESERVES (continued)

“ZZ/\FNA-H
E-ZRNFRIR

R AR R(Wit35a)
fIfeBRR (M 36)

ERANBRNZAT
EEZRBERX

RiTFBREmERE
[
REVEBREMEREHE
FEER
RZEENF=A=T—H
L-ETNENA—H
NFEEE(HHE350)
TE-ZENEFIR

R ABRENH35)
TIFERRRIE(Hi235)
BIREBRM (A 2350)

EREAURN A FEE
ZERX
RiTERRENERE
Ff
REUREREMERERE
FEER

“E-ZF=R=+-H

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

%R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

37. f#E#E)

AT
Employee
share-based
Share compensation Warrant ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
SR XA
FEEZ AREE
RHEE HERE f#E ZitEE -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TR TR
729,399 3,393 5,160 (335,921) 402,031
3 - - - 3
1,044 - - - 1,044
- 3,097 - - 3,097
900 (900) - - -
- (1,358) - 1,358 -
- - - (83,268) (83,268)
731,346 4,232 5,160 (417,831) 322,907
14,697 - - - 14,697
115 - - - 115
17,743 - - - 17,743
37,685 - - - 37,685
- 303 - - 303
1,814 (1,814) - - _
- (329 - 329 -
- - - (65,884) (65,884)
803,400 2,39 5,160 (483,386) 327,566
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

Group

(a)

(b)

120

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases payable by the Group are as follows:

—4F

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

The Group leases a number of rented premises and fixed
asset under operating leases. The leases run for an initial
period of one to five years (2009: one to five years).
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

As lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
future minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of investment properties
which fall due as follows:

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

The Group leases its investment properties (Note 19)
under operating lease arrangements which run for an
initial period of two to five years (2009: two to five
years), with an option to renew the lease terms at the
expiry date or at dates as mutually agreed between the
Group and the respective tenants. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals. The properties are expected
to generate rental yields of 2% (2009: 3%) on an
ongoing basis.

B %R R M

HE_ZT-ZTF=A=1t—HILFE

38 KEHELH
NEE

(a)

F_E=FLF(BEEREMF)

(b)

F_EFLF(BREERMF)

TERBFEMA

RBEMESERE - AEEREET
51| AR i 2 N AT R AR A A E T A
REEXNZKEREFENT

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FHBT

937
1,179

2,116

AEBREBLEHERRETHEY
ENEEEE - BONT /BM—FE
AFE(ZTTNE  —FERF) - #
BEABENEEIAES -

EBHEA

RIS HRIER A - AEERBET
51| ERS TR 2 T A S e
BEM N B RN RIERERE
T

2009
—EETNF
HK$'000
FHBT

7,684
8,508

16,192

AEBREBSLHETHRARER
BYE(NE19)  ZERH 2P
HHEMFERAF(ZTTNAE M
FERF)  UHEAHEERA X
AEEERZAFELH T2 BERA
o ZEROBMERSHATES - %
EMEBIAHERIZ% (2T H
F :3%) 2Ok -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(continued)
Company

The Company does not have any significant operating lease
commitments or any minimum lease receipts under non-
cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2010 and 31
March 2009.

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Group

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting period:

2010 2009
—E2-2F —ZEThEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Contracted but not provided in the EETHERRER S B IRE
consolidated financial statements Bs1E

Investment properties WEYZ = 54,876
Renovation BFr = -
- 54,876

Company PN

The Company does not have any significant commitments as
at 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2009.

B %R R M

BRE-F-FF=A=tALEE

38.

39.

KEHERS @)

ZNNC
R-E—FF=-A=1+—HR-ZFTIhE
=A=1—H  AREIRE A2 &
EHEYRTAEAZLERERT T
A WO 2 A ] AR AR B RRR o

BAERE

EH

REBRKRERMERRA ZERAER
T

RARAFR-_ZE-ZTF=A=+—HAK=Z
ZENF=ZA=+— B W EEAERELE -
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. FAREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities of REBRAARRREHARERB 254
the Group and the Company were as follows: BENT
Group Company
rEH b N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E2—FF —_TTHhF ZB-FF _—TThHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FH&T FET FAT
Guarantees given to a financial B TFHBATZ
institution in respect of RITRE A
banking facilities granted BB IE R IR
to subsidiaries - - 251,539 63,080

41.

122

The extent of the facilities utilised as at 31 March 2010 by the
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$111,035,000
(2009: HK$19,524,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (“Defined Contribution Scheme”) for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong and Singapore. The
assets of the Defined Contribution Scheme of Hong Kong
are held separately from those of the Group and are under
the control of trustees. Where there are employees who
leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
amount of forfeited contributions. The assets of the Deferred
Contribution Scheme of Singapore is regulated and managed
by the Singapore Government.

Effective from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
the MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at the rate specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group in respect of
MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
these schemes charged to the consolidated income statement
represent contributions paid or payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

No contribution was forfeited during the year (2009: Nil).

41.

HE_Z-—ZF=A=+—10  fBAAF
2EAEE#I111,035,0008 T ( ZEZ A,
£ 119,524,000/ 7T) °

R R ETE

AEERERBBLININKAERERR
HEBESCRKRE N8 ([ EBRERE
gll) BRERHNE 2BEEAXTEA
ZHIWERALEEESHTE © HWEER
BE2BHFATRHZAE - BIFTRMHE
FRA] A LARE AR SR B R A 2 (13K T D3
R EIZ BEMR NIRRT EE &
B o

B-TZETF+_A—HE  AEBRE
BERE2MBEERE - REEF
ZIERBBRBINERTR DR BED] - A58
HREEEEEE REM - BTS2
BEBBIULSFEANES T AIEH I EAR
SEEEDRITHE - RIBESHEIZR
8] - BEREESEAEMRANEE Z LR
B - AEERRTR S & E—]
TR 8 RERK - LEE LU
FRA] A LUBUE R SR R A 2 K

A BT EIEL Z RINRBAET EEFN RS
WasBRANER - RBEA KB BRZ SR
AIENRENTES ZHREE

FALEHRERW(ZFTNE - &) -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BE—ZT—T&E=A=+—AIEE

42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 42.

On 8 January 2010, the Group acquired 100% of the share
capital of Expats Residences Pte. Ltd (“Expats”) together
with a loan due to Mr. Chan Heng Fai (“Mr. Chan”) of
approximately $$4.39 million from the vendor, Mr. Chan
at a consideration of approximately HK$40.7 million. Mr.
Chan is a substantial shareholder, the chairman of the
board of director and an executive director of the Company.
Expats is principally engaged in property investment. It was
incorporated in Singapore with limited liability and is wholly-
owned by Mr. Chan. The acquisition has been completed on
5 March 2010.

Cash and cash equivalents ReMkReFEIER
Investment properties WEME

Deferred taxation RIETIE

Borrowings B

Trade and other payables B 5 REAM NI
Net assets acquired FriE EEFE

Total consideration satisfied by: BREZ T FRZA
Loan due to Mr.Chan HERRFEEER

Issue of shares BATIRD

Net cash inflow arising from acquisition WEEEA 2 REmAFRE
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary ~ FrUEME AT 2RE
acquired REeFEEE

The acquired businesses did not contribute any revenues or
result to the Group for the period from the date of acquisitions
to 31 March 2010.

EBast

RZZE—ZF—ANA  AEENURED
40,700,000 JT[A) & 77 BR1E 88 & 4 (T BR
%5 4 |) U BE Expats Residences Pte. Ltd
([Expats]) 2R AER SRR EECE
K #)4,390,000 M TT © BRI AR R
AIFERE EFGEERATES o
Expats+ ZEEMERE - I M
R ABBRAR  WHREESERES -
ZEREEN =T —ZEF=-ARHAZEK -

Acquiree’s

carrying
amount Fair value

wWWEL 2
BREE AFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
18,927 18,927
65,523 65,523
(6,421) (6,421)
(1,461) (1,461)
(17,730) (17,730)
58,838 58,838

24,355
16,345

40,700

K
18,927

MEEAZE—F—TE=A=1+—AH
R P B 2 T A S A R A (T
R -
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

42 . BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill are as
follows:

Purchase consideration
Fair value of net assets acquired

BEARE

=B

Bargain purchase

43. DISPOSAL OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

Year ended 31 March 2009

On 14 November 2008, a Japan subsidiary of the Company,
Xpress Travel Limited (“Japan Travel”), filed a petition for
the liquidation of Japan Travel in Japan in shortly after,
a liquidation trustee was appointed by the court to deal
with the rights and claims that creditors have against Japan
Travel. Up to the report date, Japan Travel is still under the
liguidation process. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, it is unlikely to have material adverse financial
impact on the Group. The fair values of net assets of Japan
Travel attributable to the Group as at the date of disposal of
Japan Travel were as follows:

B EEREZ A FE

43.

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

42. E8E6tm)

P 2 EEFENMEEFBOT

HK$'000
TAT

40,700
(58,838)

(18,138)

HEFEMB AR
BE_ZTNF=ZA=+—HLFE
RZZZENF+—A+MNA - KAFZH
7K B B8 /A &) Xpress Travel Limited ([ Japan
Travel ]) £ B 7~ 32 B B Japan Travelis 5
25 WA ERZEERETA -
KRR EIEERE A Japan Travel G 2 1
FIRZRE - HZEHRE HE - Japan Travel
MERNEBRERF - ARAREZERE £
ANAlgE e HAREBEKERTH 27
£ o A Japan Travel® B - AEE L
Japan Travelz EEFEAFELT

HK$'000
T
Net liabilities disposed of: FIHEBEFE
Goodwill [EES 11,663
Property, plant and equipment W - R NEE 7,488
Trade and other receivables, B 5 R A EW IS
deposits and prepayments e RIBNFRIE 60,938
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEIER 2,785
Trade and other payables and accruals B NHEMBERNZKIANU K ESTE R (99,523)
Borrowings BE (40,545)
Finance lease payables ERBERERIE (1,125)
(58,319)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—fMIBAR kS 20,432
Total consideration HARE (37,887)
Satisfied by: S TTA
Debts forfeited by the Group BEAREE R 2 &S (37,887)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEE RS RTFRE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HECsHEeRESEEEE (2,785)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

43. DISPOSAL OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Year ended 31 March 2009 (continued)

On 14 November 2008, the Group entered into a sale and
purpose agreement for the disposal of the 56.46% of the
issued and paid-up capital of Makino Air Travel Service Co.,
Ltd (“Makino”) at a consideration of JPY30 million. The fair
values of net assets of Makino attributable to the Group as at
the date of disposal of Makino were as follows:

Net liabilities disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Trade and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other payables and accruals

Borrowings

Finance lease payables

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Other receivables
Debts forfeited by the Group
Cash

Net cash outflow arising on disposal
Cash consideration
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

M&’%‘#ﬁ% Il

-EI
+

—HIFE

43. HEXENBQ R (@)

ﬁ:t— =<
(4)

_LE\E\T%u

ENF=A=1T—HLEE

R-ZZFZENF+—A+MAE - AEHEFT

* 430,000,000 B B 7 £ &

MakinoZ BEFER

PrhEREHE
Wx - BE LR
AHEHESRERE

BRAVEABGEZEMEE

B 5 MEA EIRIR
e MIANKIEA
RE &fﬁfﬁﬁﬁlﬁi H

B 5 REMENFIRARESER

&8
FEf R EE R

HE - B ARz W

BRE

S TE
H At fE MR
EAKE R ZEH
R

HEEEZHSREFHE
RERE
HEZHRe MREFEERR

. & Makino Air Travel Service Co., Ltd
(I'Makino |) 2 56.46% 2 317 M 812 &
Koo PAH & Makino® H - AN & E EL

FEMT

HK$'000
TAT

854
684

4,060

20,355

2,365
(27,763)
(13,539)
(595)

(13,579)
13,579

1,835
(2,293)
458

458
(2,365)

(1,907)
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

43. DISPOSAL OF MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Year ended 31 March 2009 (continued)

On 11 December 2008, the Group entered into a sale and
purpose agreement for the disposal of the 60% of the issued
and paid-up capital of Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd (“Anglo-
French”) at a consideration of S$2,100,000. The fair values
of net assets of Anglo-French attributable to the Group as at
the date of disposal of Anglo-French were as follows:

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE
43. HEXENB LR (#)

BE-ETNF=ZA=Z+—-HLEE
(%)

RZZEZENF+ZA+—H  xEEFIY
B E ik 0 bA2,100,000%7 pnig w2 R B
i & Anglo-French Travel Pte Ltd ([ Anglo-
French]) 2 60% B 31T RAUR A ° R
& Anglo-French® A + A& E & {5 Anglo-
Frenchz BEFEAFENT :

HK$'000
T
Net liabilities disposed of: FrtEaEHE
Goodwill S 6,385
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 890
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B R E 2,233
Trade and other receivables, deposits g 5 KR H b W RIE
and prepayments e RIBRNFRIE 28,437
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSEIER 21,773
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 REMERFIEAREE A (37,210)
Borrowings BE (5,152)
Finance lease payables FERRERERE (54)
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR I A (2,301)
15,001
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNBARZEE (3,691)
Total consideration BRE 11,310
Satisfied by: XA
Cash e 11,310
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEEAZRS R F5E
Cash consideration HEREB 11,310
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEzReRE£EEEE (21,773)
(10,463)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

a4,

45.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
Group

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the year
ended 31 March 2010 and 2009.

(@) Accountancy fee income of approximately HK$244,000
(2009: Nil) received from an associate of the Group,
SingXpress.

(b) Consultancy fee income of approximately HK$156,000
(2009: Nil) received from an associate of SingXpress.

(c) Rental income of approximately HK$84,000 (2009:
HK$226,000) received from a wholly-owned subsidiary
of SingXpress.

(d) On 9 April 2009, Mr. Chan entered into an underwriting
agreement with the Company in relation to the Open
Offer (Note 35). Mr Chan has received approximately
HK$235,000 as underwriter's commission.

(e) On 8 January 2010, the Group acquired 100% of the
share capital of Expats together with a loan due to
Mr. Chan of approximately $$4.39 million from the
vendor, Mr. Chan at a consideration of approximately
HK$40.7 million. Mr. Chan is a substantial shareholder,
the chairman of the board of director and an executive
director of the Company.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risk such as
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, which result from
both its operating and investing activities. According to the
Group’s written risk management policies and guidelines,
the financial risk shall be assessed continuously by the
management taken into account of the prevailing conditions
of the financial market and other relevant variables to avoid
excessive concentrations of risk. The Group has not used any
derivatives or other instruments for hedging purpose. The
most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed
to are described below.

M%#E%E T?fL

44.

45.

—HIFE

BEALTRS
AEW

BT IR %&%ﬁ{mﬁﬁﬁ&é?z%%&%
7o MBE-_ZT-ZTFER_TTNF=
A=1t— Eii&ﬁ’iléﬁiﬁaﬁ/\iﬁT
SRS °

(a) BAEEZH#E AL SingXpressUgEX
Gt B AW ALI244,0008 T (=&
THE E) -

(b) B SingXpress 2 B 8 A + 4 BN EE [
BRI A4156,0008 T (ZEZ A,
FE) -

(0 BSingXpressZ & & KB A a WA AE
S U A LI84,000 L(ZEENF ¢
226,00077T) °

(d) EA_—\,—\,jliﬂﬂj'LE BeR 50 A B AR
NAERIM BB ARAEE (MiE35) 2

B o BRIEAE WHERKI235,000

BTERBEHEAE -

() RZZE—ZTF—ANH  XEEUR
{E%940,700,00078 7oA B 5 BR 56 £ Uk
fEExpats 2 EPRR A ERIAA R IR E 4 2
B FR#494,390,000%7 114 7T © BRAE A&
ABARFEERE  EELERFRN
TEE -

R EE R ERBXR

REBAZREKERINE RS 2 ZEY
R - PlInTS R (B IEINE R -
ﬂfﬂ 2 MERRR)  EERR MR
é & o IRIEAEE EMAKREER
&h% aﬁ%%%ﬁuﬂm%ﬁ#&
HibBEEE @ SEHEU KRR - AR
FREBBEEFR - AEBEKRFERTMAR
2 HTET A HM T A o REBEET
ZERERREBRIEMIAT o
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, Singapore, Japan
and USA with most of the transactions denominated and
settled in Hong Kong dollars, Singapore dollars, Yen and
United States dollars respectively. Foreign currency risk
arises from financial assets, liabilities and transactions which
were denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the group entities. The Group manages its
foreign currency risks by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates and will consider entering into
foreign currency forward contracts or other instruments
to hedge significant foreign currency exposure when
necessary.

At the end of the reporting period, foreign currency

denominated financial assets and liabilities, translated into
HK$ at the rates, are as follows:

Net financial assets (liabilities) & R&EE(BE)FE

Hong Kong dollars (HKD) BT (EIT)
Singapore dollars (SGD) b T N o)
Japanese Yen (JPY) HE(BE)

United States dollars (USD) ESE i)
Australian dollars (AUD) BT (CRIT)
Renminbi (RMB) ARE(ARE)
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BRE-FT-FF=A=t—ALFE
45. BHEREEBERERK @)

SR

REBIENEE - K - ARAKRER
REXR - REBMORXZABTT - #FIE
7T BERETIENRGEE - SNEERH
AEBEBERNEEBUINEEIEZE
BEE BERRIFEL - AREEEE
DEREXSEHERINIERR  HES
B WHEBAILINEERRAOREMT
B AEREAINE R ©

RmEMEERE - AINESIEZ SRE
ERABEE TN ERBE BT -

Group Company
REM Z SN
2009 2009
—ETEINF —EETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
10,078 -
498 70
31 31
12,175 10,011
1,687 3
4 4
24,473 10,119
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES ~ 45. Bi AR EE B ERKE @)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to HKD, USD and SGD. The
following table details the Group’s sensitivity analysis,
the analysis assumes a 5% increase and decrease in HKD,
USD and SGD against the HKS$, with all other variable held
constant. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates until the next of the
end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding items denominated in foreign currencies
other than the functional currencies of the group entities and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates.

HKD Impact
BL2HE

2010 2009

=%-8F ~I3/5 =895
HKS$'000  HK$'000 - HKS$‘000
FEx Ten . TER

Profit after taxation BRi B R T 939 410

S (1)

AREBETEAEET  ZTLFIRTZ
R o TREAFINEE 2 GURED © %
DITRERETT ~ RITMF BT B TD
BIFHE R BZ{E5% - 1 ATA E A 28R
N o 5% BRAETEEIEABANBREI
WREBRFTER 2 SURELL R - WHKRERE
EBHEZE T —(E3REHRERE R HIE
KA BB 2 HE - HREIMER
EHRASEZERINEEEINAINEIIE
ZARFRIER » WRFIEIL5% 2 [ERE
HRBERENHEER

USD Impact SGD Impact Total Impact
R T e b2 )

2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

“2ThE SRR —TTNF S8 RE| TS
HK$'000 | HKS$000  HK$'000 | HKS$'000  HK$'000
sicd R R

510 2,59 21 4,810 941

As HKD is linked to USD, the Group does not have material
exchange risk on such currencies.

Interest rate risk

The Group income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s
interest rate risk mainly arises from bank borrowings. Bank
borrowings arranged at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. As at 31 March 2010,
approximately 64% (2009: 46%) of the bank borrowings
bore interest at floating rates. The interest rate and repayment
terms of the bank borrowings outstanding at year end are
disclosed in Note 31.

The Group’s bank balances also expose it to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on the bank balances. The directors consider the Group’s
exposure of the bank deposits and bank borrowings to fair
value interest rate risk is not significant as interest bearing
bank deposits and borrowings at fixed rate are within short
maturity periods in general.

FETEETTR - ARERZEFERL
EERINER

IS

AEBZBARZEEREREEA LT
MGNEEHTE - NAEEZ M XRERE
ERERITEE o UFBF X K EE =
R ZRITEEERAEEN AR S
MENEEAR LA HENEER - R _-F
—ZTFE=A=1T—H0  864%(—ZFTN
F o 46%) ZIRTTREAEE ARG E -
RERRHREEZRITEEZNEREE
TERRPAPRE3 1 R

HRIRTTETFRITH SN EKE) - AEE
RITEFIMEE AR R REN KRR -
EEAR BB IRITIER M E =
fEEEE FRHAYERE - MAKE R
TERRBITEEMERI A TETERR
RERK °
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #& 3R & Mt &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BE—ZT—T&E=A=+—AIEE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES ~ 45.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

At 31 March 2010, if interest rates had increased or
decreased by 1% and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit after tax for the year and retained profits
would increase or decrease by approximately HK$ 1,756,000
(2009: HK$595,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure to floating interest rates of the floating
rate bank borrowings.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk arising from listed
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

Management's best estimate of the effect on the Group’s profit
after tax due to a reasonably possible change in the relevant
stock market index, with all other variables held constant, at
the end of the reporting period is as follows (in practice, the
actual trading results may differ from the sensitivity analysis
below and the difference could be material):

BRRMREEBEERBE#®)

T B (&)

MN-B—FE=F=+—0  MHXLH
B NFE1% - MATE M B ERFTE
AIAEEARFERRE LN RIRSBEH
H18 hnsE 4 491,756,000 L (—EE A
£ : 595,00087T) c WEERNAEEHT
HFBFRBITEE 2 FEFIKAME -

EsmE

REERTHMHRRAFEGABRT S
FRGBEEZ LHRESRZERR

@ o
Z2

RBEMEERE - EXRENEBEST
SHRENAEBEEZ(C(EMAEMBER
MR TZHERT ) BAKBRBREH
MREGFTOT(BERE  BENRSE
RATGESHEATHHREDMEMER R

ARt g REAMER) !
2010 2009
—E-2F —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
39,628 4,125
(39,628) (4,125)
53 2,778
(53) (2,778)

Increase (decrease) in profit after tax AR IO/ )
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BB BAEEH
+30% +30%
-30% -30%
Singapore — Straits Times Index T hnsE — G A IRIE £
+20% +20%
-20% -20%
U.S.A—Dow Jones Industrial Average Index £ —HIEH T 2558k
+20% +20%
-20% -20%
Fair value

All financial instruments are carried at amount not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2010 and
2009.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, amounts due from associates and bank balances
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets. The carrying amounts of these
financial assets presented in the statements of financial
position are net of impairment losses, if any. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, loan receivables and
amounts due from associates, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all debtors requiring credit and loan
receivables over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the debtors’ past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the debtors as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtors operates. Trade receivables
are due within 60 days from the date of billing. The Group
does not obtain collateral from customers in respect of trade
receivables, while for loan receivables, collateral are usually
obtained.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-ratings agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables and loan receivables are set out in Note 28 and
25, respectively.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets represents the carrying amounts of other
receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries, amounts due
from associates and bank balances. The carrying amounts of
these financial assets presented in the Company’s statement
of financial position are net of impairment losses, if any.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

H&’%‘#ﬁ% T?fL

—HIFE

BEEREREBERBE®)

=EmEE
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HeMEEMAX ZEAEERR - 1RH
F#R%ENZJ%éﬂéﬁzﬁﬁﬁE
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W%%&ﬁMﬁwmﬁ JE U S R K Bt o
NEIRRME B EREERER
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R BHREWFIBEEREHRF60KA
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the directors monitor
and maintain a level of bank balances deemed adequate to
finance the Group’s operations investment opportunities and
expected expansion. The Group finances its working capital
requirements mainly by the funds generated from operations

and from fund raising activities such as placement of new
shares and issuance of warrants.

As at 31 March 2010, the Group's financial liabilities have
contractual maturities which are summarised below:

As at 31 March 2010

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

45.

R EE B ZERBE#)
REE LA

REBRBASRRNE - EFERTE
H0 B RIRA AR B ER A RE R I
R Y BTREKT - AREEEFE
WA A% RRA R A S
B R B (TR BT AR BT HEE
BATS -

R-ZZE-—ZF=A=+—H r5E<R
BEZANIIHMARANT

R-E—-ZHF=ZA=+—H

Non-current

Current ERE

ENER After one after two
within  but within  but within Over
oneyear twoyears fiveyears five years

—F&E ME#ZE
—FR RWER RAEFERA hE%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET

Trade and other payables S5 NEMERN

and accruals NIAN FEET IR 101,160 - - -
Bank overdraft RITEX 8,274 - - -
Borrowings BE 87,961 15,036 31,133 41,432
Amounts due to associates Py /NI E I 10 - - -
197,405 15,036 31,133 41,432

As at 31 March 2009 R-BEAF=A=+—H

Non-current

Current FERE

ENE}  Afterone  after two
within  but within  but within Over
oneyear twoyears fiveyears five years

—F%@E ME#E
—FR RRER REFER hFE%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET T FHT

Trade and other payables B AR

and accruals RIE L EET IR 38,514 - - -
Borrowings == 11,118 10,866 30,338 21,738
Amounts due to associates 4ER BN B FUR 1,387 - - -
51,019 10,866 30,338 21,738
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidlity risk (continued)

The above contractual maturities reflect the undiscounted
cash flows, which may differ to the carrying values of the

liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

B %R R M

HE-F-BF=A=+—ALFE
45. BHEREEBERERK @)

REE LR (E)

HRAHIMEARIFWHRRSRE - XE
BRIRNHEMEERE ZAERAEE -

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities recognised at the end of the reporting period may
also be categorised as follows. See Note 3.13 for explanations
about how the category of financial instruments affects their

subsequent measurement.

(i) Financial assets

Non-current assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
Loans and receivables:

- Loan receivables

Current assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Loans and receivables:
— Trade and other receivables

- Loan receivables

- Amounts due from subsidiaries
- Amounts due from associates
- Pledged bank deposits

- Bank balances and cash

332

BEFIPIR EMEEHEEHE

RBEMEERE - BRZAKESRE
EMBEZEREENBENT - BES
MTADBHERZGEZREE  AME

(i) &@WEE
Group Company
i 3| ¥ N
2009 2009
—ETNEF “ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
ERBEE
HESHEE 12,178 -
ERREWE
—RUER 736 -
12,914 _
RBEE
BATERABRZZ
SREE 102,885 52,853
EX R ENE
—-BS REMEK
R 20,778 729
—EIER 6,511 -
~MBARIRZK - 401,230
VNI 7,648 3,809
—EEBRTER 3,973 -
—iRTEBRRES 56,828 16,524
198,623 475,145
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

134

AND POLICIES (continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

(continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
- Trade and other payables
and accruals

- Bank overdraft

- Borrowings

- Amounts due to associates
- Amounts due to subsidiaries

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
- Borrowings

HBAE
BB BERATE
SREE
-BHRAME
FUEMN K
BB
—BITEY
—fEE
— R
—RHB

Al
5

A

b

>

FRBEE

REHN AR
THAR
—fB&

(5]

R
R

B %R R M

BE-—T-TE-—A-+—AILEE
45. BEEREEEERBEKRE)

fﬁﬂ&ﬁz THEEHREEHE

(i) EWMEE

Group Company

A% £27
2009 2009
—FThE “TENE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TH7
38,514 3,000
11,118 -
1,387 587
- 155,785
51,019 159,372

62,942



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  Bf & $§ & M &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HE-—E-THE-A=-+—HIEE

46. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 46.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable.

—  Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

- Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Financial assets at fair BRAFETAEBREZ
value through profit or loss £@EE

Non-derivative financial BIEEE 2 IE0THE
assets held for trading SRVEE

During the year ended 31 March 2010, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

DERS

TRIFIIERAHERVITEREAEZ
TRTAMMETON  ZFSRTAIR
BEBRGHZATERENERE —Z
=&

- B RAFEMEREREEXAER
FERMS . RE(CRERAB) MEL
£

- FARVEFERBRES AN
A E & (AR ER) R EE (A B(ER
ELBEREMEZEERABERAE
(REERINPTEES -

— BERAFEMEREEELIFRE
BEMSMEBIBECEEXBERA
BEEBEEEMTRAE) MARJBER
MAELE -

BHE_T—ZTF=—A=1T—HILFE &
— AR F_AEYEAHETE 2EE
TMEEANBHE= -
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Xpress Group Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

47. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND

48.

136

PROCEDURES

The Group's capital management objectives are:

— 1o ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern
—  to provide an adequate return to shareholder

The directors of the Company also balance its overall
capital structure periodically. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividend paid to shareholders, new shares issue as well as of
warrants. The directors of the Company will also consider the
raise of long-term borrowings as second resource of capital
when investment opportunities arise and the return of such
investments will justify the cost of debts from the borrowings
and bank overdraft

Debt BE

Less: Bank balances and cash and W RITESR R
pledged bank deposits R

Net debt AfEF5E

Capital represented by total equity AR 7 4 2

m
excluding non-controlling interests IR

BARREL X

Gearing ratio

The directors of the Company also endeavour to ensure
the steady and reliable cash flow from the normal business
operation.

MAJOR NON CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2010, acquisition of 100%
equity interests in Expats amounting to HK$40.7 million was
settled by issuance of share capital of the Company. Details
disclosed in Note 42 to this report.

There was no major non cash transactions during the year
ended 31 March 2010.

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

47.

REHR
TR

T

48.

BEXERERERRER

AEEZEREERRER

RN EESELE 28D

- RHEGEERHRTER

ARARZEZNERFOHHBEELRR
B RETIHEBEARNRE  AEEARE
HEBN TR B - HIRBETER
BHERE - HAREREEL ARAIZE
ENBEREERMETFERERZF =
HORM % FHRE 2 B3R AT F AR PAE L 5
ERRITE 2 BB -

2010 2009
—$-%F —TIAF
HK$'000 HK$000
FHT FHT
183,836 74,060

(137,259) (60,801)
46,577 13,259
772,679 427,704
6% 3%

ARBZEFTENHEREAERHEE
SRIBEAISEZRERE

TEHFRERS

§ © Wi Expats 2 B AN 2 NIB A
40,700,000/ 7T + JhiEBEITA R AR
B - BEFBERRAREWEL2 -

BHE_T-ZTF=A=1+—HIEFEAL
BIBRHRAERH -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2010

49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated
9 April 2010, one of the indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company was granted 8 options to
purchase 8 units situated at No. 36 Dakota Crescent
#10-07, #09-07 and #11-07, Singapore 399937, No.
38 Dakota Crescent #01-09, #08-09 and #14-09,
Singapore 299938, and No. 40 Dakota Crescent #08-
13 and #09-13, Singapore 299939 with purchase price
of $$15,415,170 (approximately HK$85,708,000) from
an independent third party. The Group was bound
to capital commitment of $$12,332,136 due to the
acquisition.

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated
9 April 2010, one of the indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company entered into formal sale
and purchase agreement with independent third party
in relation to dispose a property which located at No.
981 Nelson Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada
at a consideration of CAD3,000,000 (approximately
HK$23,100,000) on 12 March 2010. The transaction
has been completed on 15 April 2010.

As set out in the Company’s announcement dated 2 July
2010, the Company entered into the agreement with
SingXpress and ACT Holdings Pte Ltd ("ACT"), pursuant
to which, SingXpress and ACT agreed to jointly establish
a joint venture company (“JV Company”) to carry out a
project of owning and redeveloping the existing block
of 21 units of walk-up apartments located in Foh Pin
Mansion at Charlton Road, Singapore (the “Project”). JV
Company shall be owned 80% by SingXpress and 20%
by ACT for the purpose of holding and re-developing
the properties. If SingXpress is unable to go ahead with
the Project for any reason, the Company has agreed to
stand behind the transaction and will assume all the
rights and obligations in the JV Company in respect of
the Project from SingXpress.

B %R R M

BE_Z-—ZF=-A=1+—HIFE

49. HEHBREE

(a

HUNARRBHAE_ZT—ZFMHA
NBZAMAH + ARFIHP—FK
MESENE AR ERSIESE - A
M —&EE =B ALMNo. 36
Dakota Crescent #10-07 ~ #09-07 &
#11-07, Singapore 399937 : No. 38
Dakota Crescent #01-09 + #08-09 &
#14-09, Singapore 299938 A X No.
40 Dakota Crescent #08-13 M #09-
13, Singapore 299939 7 8 1A & i1 -
B8 A8 & 15,415,170 % hn 3 7T (49
85,708,000/8 7T ) © A EEETTI
REZAE L B ARIE12,332, 1365 I
T o

HUWARRIHBHA=ZZ—FTFWOAN
Bz R s - ARARIHA —KH
ErEMBAREBYE =R
T-—FF=A+_HIVIEXEE
% -+ WA K @ LA {E3,000,0000
70 (#923,100,000/8 70 ) tH & —IEN
M No. 981 Nelson Street, Vancouver,
British Columbia, CanadaZ 1% - =
BRSGENR_ZE—ZTFMHA+THARE
B o

WNANTHAE-E—ZEFLAZ
HZ AfEFr#E - A2 B #ESingXpress
N ACT Holdings Pte Ltd([ACT)&T3z
Wik - ¥ UL o SingXpress X ACTR =
HRAKZAEERR([EERAA]) -
VAETTHER I B B I R AL T I3
Charlton Road % % Foh Pin Mansion
ZLEBHMABAL2IEEMN([IE
B 1) o &% AR ASingXpress R ACT
DRIEBE80% K20% #a  AFEH
LEZEBBYE o fMSingXpressE
EMREAREETIER - AR AF]E
BEYERS - WiEEIESIngXpressTt
HERAEERRZ—IENREE -
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Xpress Group Limited

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Results E34
Revenue Wz

Profit (loss) for the year 57 (E1E)

Attributable to: FEAG -
Owners of the Company ZR R EH#HB A
Non-controlling interests JE{E A& HEzE

Profit (loss) for the year FEZ5% 7 (EE)

Assets and liabilities BEREBE

Total assets BEE
Total liabilities weE
Non-controlling interests JE1% ik it 2%

Equity attributable to ~ ARQEHA A
owners of the JE(h
Company

138

i

BB E

For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=t—RLEE

(Restated) (Restated)

(&) (E3))

2009 2008 2007 2006
—EENF —ZTET)N\F —TETLF —TETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TExT THET FHT
1,112,218 1,430,713 689,184 529,327
(111,587) 9,315 16,081 102,544
(111,587) 12,229 40,112 53,138
- (2,914) (24,031) 49,406
(111,587) 9,315 16,081 102,544

As at 31 March
R=BA=+—8H

2009 2008 2007 2006
“BENF ZEENF ZTELF ZBERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHET
578,072 939,821 923,583 650,856
(150,337) (380,151) (355,976) (161,007)
31 (2,332) (39,024) (60,732)
427,704 557,338 528,583 429,117




PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

As at 31 March 2010

Location

2

Investment properties

REME

No.883 North Bridge Road, Shop on
1/F. and 27 Home Office
Units on various floors,
Southbank, Singapore 198785

No. 239 Arcadia Road, #03-04
The Arcadia, Singapore 289845

No. 237 Arcadia Road, #05-01 The
Arcadia, Singapore 289844

Strata Lot 7, No. 1281 Alberni Street,

Vancouver, British Columbia,
Strata Plan LMS3094, Canada

No. 981 Nelson Street, Vancouver,
British Columbia, Canada

No.35 North Canal Road, Singapore
059291

5/F., Island Place Tower, Island Place,
No. 510 King's Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

BB AERES 105 BB NESE

30/F and Carpark No. C8 on
2nd Carparking Floor,
Wyndham Place, No.44
Wyndham Street,
Central, Hong Kong

EBPIREMAIMFERMEER O30

KB EEISCEREN

Parcels of Land located at 671-180-012,

013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018
Desert Hot Springs, Riverside
County, California, U.S.A.

Gross
area

REE

28,732 sq ft
28,732 AR

6,566 sq ft
6,566 7R

3,757 sq ft
3,757 F AR

1,572 sq ft
1,572FFR

9,537 sq ft
9,537 F AR

4,844 sq ft
4,844 7FR

20,090 sq ft
20,090 F /5 IR

3,480 sq ft
3,480F H R

67.5 acres/
273,200 sq m/
2,940,300 sq ft
67581,
273,200 75K/
2,940,300 F H R

AY

Effective%
held

BERERE (%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

FE
RN-ZE—

%
TFE=R

Type
Vi)

Home Office
REHAE

Apartment
B

Apartment
B

Vacant

EE

Single-storey
ground floor
school/office unit

BEMTRE/

MAZEAL

Office premises
WREYE

Office premises

HE/NESYE

Office premises

HE/NES Y

Vacant land

EELTH

-8

Lease term

kY

Long-term lease

REEHD

Long-term lease

REHEG

Long-term lease

REIFRA
Freehold

KAHERE

Freehold
KAFERE

Medium-term lease

REIED

Medium-term lease

FEIRD

Long-term lease

REHED

Freehold
KA R
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Xpress Group Limited

PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES FE
RZE—

As at 31 March 2010

Location

2

Car Parking Spaces Nos. 22, 23,
24 on Lower Ground Floor,
Inverness Villa,
No. 22 Inverness Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

BB N E T E229%
FEXCRIZE I T 22 ~ 23 ~ 24%REfL

Hotel Hamilton, 1-238, Nishi 15-chome,
Minami 1-jyo, Chuo-ku, Sapporo-shi,
Hokkaido, Japan

No. 200 Jalan Sultan, #08-11
Textile Centre, Singapore 199018

Land and Buildings
T REF

24/F and Carpark No. C12 on

3rd Carparking Floor, Wyndham Place,

No. 44 Wyndham Street, Central,
Hong Kong

EBPIREMALMFERMEER D248
NMIBEESCI125RE M

Aizuya Hotel, 733 Shiobara,
Nasu-Shiobara City,
Tochigi 329-2921, Japan

Miyazaki Hotel, 1-1, Kawahara-cho,
Miyazaki City, Miyazaki 880-0866,
Japan

140

Gross
area

REE

30sqm/
322sq ft
30FFAKS
322F R

3,209 sgm
3,209 75K

3,652 sqgm
3,652F ;K

3,480 sq ft
3,480F 7R

3,152 sgm
3,152F /K

17,721 sgm
17,721F 77 K

Effective%
held

BERERE (%)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

%
TFE=R

Type
Vi)

Car parking space

Bfy

Hotel
B JE

Office premises

/NS

Office premises

N YES

Hotel

BIE

Hotel
B E

Lease term

kY

Medium-term lease

FEARA

Freehold
KA EETE

Long-term lease

REEHD

Long-term lease

RHHELD

Freehold
KA

Freehold
KA EETE
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